
 

 

 

 

Meeting: North Northamptonshire Strategic Planning Committee 

Date: Monday 11th April 2022 

Time: 7:00 pm 

Venue: Council Chamber, Council Offices, Swanspool House, Doddington Road, 
Wellingborough, Northants, NN8 1BP 

 

To members of the North Northamptonshire Strategic Planning Committee 
 
Councillors North (Chair), Bell (Vice Chair), Allebone, Armour, Dalziel, Dearing, Marks, 
Powell, Rielly, Smyth, Tebbutt, Thurland and Waters 
 
Substitute Members: Councillors, Jackson, Carter, O’Hara, Prentice, Keane, McGhee and 
Anslow 
 

Agenda 

Item Subject Officer 
Presenting 

Report 

Page No 

01  Apologies for non-attendance  - 

02 Members’ Declarations of Interests  - 

03 Minutes of the meeting held on 7th March 2022  5 - 16 

 Items requiring a decision 

04 Applications for planning permission, listed building 
consent and appeal information* 
 
 

i)  NN/21/00058/WASVOC 
Variation of condition 2 of planning 
permission ref. 20/00022/WASVOC to 
increase the stack height from 25m (currently 
permitted) to 35m 
 
 

ii)  NN/21/00059/WASVOC 
Variation of condition 2 of planning 
permission ref. 20/00023/WASVOC to 
increase the stack height from 25m (currently 
permitted) to 35m 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Helen 
Marsden 

 

 

 

Helen 
Marsden 

 

 

 

 

 

 
17 – 38 

 
 
 

 

39 – 60 

 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 

                                                  Items to note 

05 Delegated Officers Report 

 

None 

  

                                                  Exempt Items 

06 None Notified   

07 Close of Meeting   

 Adele Wylie, Monitoring Officer 

North Northamptonshire Council 

 

Proper Officer 

1st April 2022 

  

 

*The reports on this agenda include summaries of representations that have been received 
in response to consultation under the Planning Acts and in accordance with the provisions 
in the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order 2015.   
 
This agenda has been published by Democratic Services. 
Committee Administrator: Callum Galluzzo (Democratic Services) 
01536 534268 
callum.galluzzo@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 
Meetings at the Council Offices 
 
Due to the Covid-19 pandemic seating in the Council Chamber will be limited.  If you are 
intending to attend the meeting as a spectator, please contact the committee administrator 
 
Where there is a need for the Council to discuss exempt or confidential business, the press 
and public will be excluded from those parts of the meeting only and will have to vacate the 
room for the duration of that business. 
 
Public Participation 
 
The Council has approved procedures for you to request to address meetings of the 
Council. 
 
ITEM NARRATIVE DEADLINE 

Members of 
the Public 
Agenda 
Statements 

Requests to address the committee must be received by 12 Noon on the 
day before the meeting.  Speakers will be limited to speak for 3 minutes. 
 

12 Noon 
Friday 8th April 
2022 

Member 
Agenda 
Statements 

A request from a Ward Councillor must be received by 12 Noon on the 
day before the meeting.  The Member will be limited to speak for 5 
minutes. 

12 Noon 
Friday 8th April 
2022 

 
Please see the procedures for speaking at the Planning Committee before registering to 
speak. 
 
If you wish to register to speak, please contact the committee administrator 

Page 2

https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy/speaking-planning-committees


 

 
Members’ Declarations of Interest 
 
Members are reminded of their duty to ensure they abide by the approved Member Code 
of Conduct whilst undertaking their role as a Councillor.  Where a matter arises at a 
meeting which relates to a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, you must declare the interest, 
not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room 
unless granted a dispensation. 
 
Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to other Registerable Interests, you 
must declare the interest.  You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are 
also allowed to speak at the meeting but must not take part in any vote on the matter 
unless you have been granted a dispensation. 
 
Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to your own financial interest (and is not 
a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) or relates to a financial interest of a relative, friend or 
close associate, you must disclose the interest and not vote on the matter unless granted 
a dispensation.  You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also 
allowed to speak at the meeting. 
 
Members are reminded that they should continue to adhere to the Council’s approved 
rules and protocols during the conduct of meetings.  These are contained in the Council’s 
approved Constitution. 
 
If Members have any queries as to whether a Declaration of Interest should be made 
please contact the Monitoring Officer at –  monitoringofficer@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 
Press & Media Enquiries 
 
Any press or media enquiries should be directed through the Council’s Communications 
Team to NNU-Comms-Team@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 
Public Enquiries 
 
Public enquiries regarding the Authority’s  meetings can be made to 
democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 

Page 3

mailto:monitoringofficer@northnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Strategic Planning Committee 
at 7.00 pm on Monday 7th March, 2022 in the 
Council Chamber, Corby Cube, George Street, Corby, NN17 1QG 
 
Present:- 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Steven North (Chair) Councillor Paul Marks 
Councillor Tim Allebone 
Councillor Ross Armour 
Councillor Alison Dalziel 
Councillor Mark Dearing 
Councillor Bert Jackson (Substitute) 
 

Councillor Roger Powell 
Councillor Simon Rielly 
Councillor Mike Tebbutt 
Councillor Kevin Thurland 
 

Officers 
 
Jasbir Sandhu        Development Services 
Duncan Law 
Reddy Nallamilli  
Edward Oteng 
Louise Holland 
Heather Webb 
Emma Granger 
Fiona Hubbard 
Pauline Brennan  

Development Services  
Development Services 
Development Services 
Development Manager 
Project Principal Officer - Biodiversity 
Legal Representative 
Democratic Services 
Democratic Services 

   
 

38 Apologies for absence  
 
It was noted that apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bell, Smyth 
and Waters. Councillor Jackson attended as a Substitute for Councillor Waters. 
 

39 Members' Declarations of Interest  
 
The Chair invited those who wished to do so to declare interests in respect of items on 
the agenda. 
 
There were no declarations received. 
 

40 Minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2022  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held 

on 13th January 2022 be approved as a correct record. 
 
*Applications for planning permission, listed building consent and appeal 
information 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



The Committee considered the following applications for planning permission, which 
were set out in the Development Control’s Reports and supplemented verbally at the 
meeting. Three speakers attended the meeting and spoke on applications in 
accordance with the Right to Speak Policy. 
 
The reports included details of applications and, where applicable, results of statutory 
consultations and representations which had been received from interested bodies 
and individuals, and the Committee reached the following decisions:- 
 

41 NW/21/00866/REM - Land area 12B Residential Stanton Cross, Irthlingborough 
Road North, Wellingborough  
 

Proposed Development 
 
*4.1 Reserved matters application for 

the siting, scale, layout and 
appearance of 81 units together 
with garaging and associated 
infrastructure pursuant to 
planning permission ref: 
WP/15/00605/VAR on Land Area 
12B Residential Stanton Cross, 
Irthlingborough Road North, 
Wellingborough. 

 
          Application No: 
          NW/21/00866/REM 
 
Speaker: 
 
James Griffiths attended the meeting 
and addressed the Committee as the 
agent for the proposed development. 
The agent considered it to be an 
attractive scheme which responded to 
the requirements of the Neighbourhood 
centre and South Slopes design brief in 
this centrally located parcel of land 
fronting onto Irthlingborough Road. He 
stated that existing residents would have 
direct pedestrian access to the 
commercial centre; the elevational 
façade to Irthlingborough Road had 
undertaken significant Urban Design 
changes from the original application 
submission and the current proposal 
would create better massing of buildings 
on Irthlingborough Road and a change 
in the fenestration window design and 
roof articulation. 
 
The agent referred to concerns of some 
residents in relation to the parking 

 Decision  
 
Members received a report to seek approval 

of Reserved Matters for the siting, scale, 

layout and appearance of 81 units together 

with garaging and associated infrastructure, 

In addition, further reserved matters had 

been submitted including vehicle parking, 

hard and soft landscaping, external amenity 

space and ancillary works pursuant to 

condition 2 of planning permission reference 

WP/15/00605/VAR. The application site was 

located within the Neighbourhood Centre 

and South Slopes Design Brief for the area 

of Stanton Cross. 

 

It was recommended in the report to 
approve the Reserved Matters Consent for 
siting, scale, layout and appearance, subject 
to the conditions set out in the report. 
  
The Planning Officer addressed the 
Committee and presented the report, 
providing full and comprehensive details. 
 
During the debate, members raised several 
questions of clarification including affordable 
housing, the Town and Country Park, 
electric vehicle charging points and the 
building control regulation condition with 
regard to water use at each dwelling.  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Marks and 
seconded by Councillor Allebone that the 
application be approved in line with the 
officer’s recommendation. 
 
It was agreed that the application be 

APPROVED subject to the following 

Page 6



strategy. He reported that the scheme 
would provide 148 allocated parking 
spaces plus 14 garages and 26 visitor 
spaces providing 188 parking spaces 
overall.   
 
He also explained that pedestrian 
access directly through this phase to the 
south would access the neighbourhood 
centre and would enhance footfall by 
providing direct pedestrian links. 
 
Following the speaker’s comments, 
members asked questions of 
clarification to the agent. 
 

conditions: 

 
 
1. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following drawings: 
 
 Received 05 Oct 2021 
 Location Plan 17410/1031              
 1B2P Maisonette 1B2P Maisonette v1 Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/100A        
 House Type MORDEN Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/104            
 House Type DERWENT Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/105A         
 House Type COLERIDGE Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/106           
 House Type COLERIDGE v1 Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/107                 
 House Type ROSEDENE Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/108       
 House Type ROSEDENE v1 Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/109                 
 House Type CHIDDINGSTONE Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/110  
 1B2P Maisonette Floor Plans and Elevations 18908 124   
 
 Received 07 Dec 2021 
 1B2P Apartment Block Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/101C          
 2B4P Apartment Block C Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/102D         
 Type MORDEN C Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/103B          
 2B4P Affordable Apartment Block Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/112F   
        
 Received 17 Jan 2022 
 Freestanding Cycle Store Details for Plots 46 and 47 18908/ 123 
 Refuse Strategy 18908/1003H     
 Received 10 Feb 2022 
 Planning Layout 18908/1001M     
 Boundary Treatments 18908/1004I            
 House Type HANBURY Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/111A 
 Type HANBURY v1 Floor Plans and Elevations 18908 120C  
 House Type HANBURY v1 with Ancillary Buildings Floor Plans 18908 121C  
 House Type HANBURY v1 with Ancillary Buildings Elevations 18908 122C 
 
 Received 16 Feb 2022 
 Street Scene AA / along Irthlingborough Road 18215/1005L    
 Materials Layout 18908/1006K 

Page 7



 Affordable House Type 3B5P Floor Plans and Elevations 18908/113A 
 Garages Pergola Freestanding Cycle Store Details 18908/114A         
 Boundary Treatments Details 18908/117A         
 
 
 Received 17 Feb 2022 
 Car Parking Strategy 18908/1002I 
 

Reason:  To define the permission for the avoidance of doubt and in accordance 
with best practice guidance set out in paragraph 022 of the National Planning 
Practice Guidance. 

 
2. In the event that any unexpected contamination is found at any time when 

carrying out the development hereby approved, it must be reported immediately 
to the Local Planning Authority. Development works at the site shall cease and an 
investigation and risk assessment undertaken to assess the nature and extent of 
the unexpected contamination. A written report of the findings shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, together with a scheme to 
remediate, if required, prior to further development on site taking place. Only once 
written approval from the Local Planning Authority has been given shall 
development works recommence. 

 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised in accordance with policy 6 of the 
North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy. 

 
3. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 

materials specified on the approved Materials Layout 18908/1006K plan as set 
out in Condition 1.   

   
Reason:  To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and to not detract from the character and appearance of the area in accordance 
with policy 8 (d) (ii) of the North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy. 

 
4. Notwithstanding the approved drawings, no development shall take place above 

slab level until full details of both hard and soft landscape works have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. These details 
shall include existing trees and/or hedgerows to be retained and/or removed 
accurately shown with root protection areas; existing and proposed finished levels 
or contours; means of enclosure; visibility splays; areas of hard surfacing 
materials; proximity between street lights and tree planting; pedestrian access 
and circulation areas; civic space/public park furniture, bins etc.; proposed and 
existing functional services above and below ground such as cables, pipelines, 
substations.  Soft landscape works shall include planting plans at a minimum 
scale of 1:200 with schedules of plants noting species, plant supply sizes and 
proposed densities; written specifications (including cultivation and other 
operations associated with tree, plant and grass establishment; and the 
implementation programme. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting 
of any tree or shrub, that tree or shrub, or any tree and shrub planted in 
replacement for it, is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies, becomes severely 
damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with trees 
and shrubs of equivalent size, species and quantity. All hard and soft landscape 

Page 8



works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of the building(s) or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner or in accordance with a 
programme agreed in writing with the local planning authority. 

 
Reason:  To protect the appearance and character of the area and to minimise 
the effect of development on the area in accordance with policy 3 (a), (b) and (e) 
of the North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy. 

 
5. No dwelling or dwellings shall be occupied until the streets affording access to 

those dwellings has been completed to wearing course.   
 

Reason: To ensure that the streets serving the development are completed and 
maintained to the approved standard, and are available for use by the occupants, 
and other users of the development, in the interest of highway safety in 
accordance with policies 8 (b) (i) and 8 (b) (ii) of the North Northamptonshire Joint 
Core Strategy. 

 
6. Before the first occupation of each associated dwelling the boundary treatment 

details as shown on Boundary Treatments 18908/1004I plan as agreed in 
condition 1 shall be installed or such other details that shall have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority and thereafter retained 
in that form.  

 
Reason:  To reduce opportunities for crime and aid security and privacy in 
accordance with policy 8 (e) (iv) of the North Northamptonshire Joint Core 
Strategy. 

 
7. No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced 

until the car/vehicle parking area shown on the approved Car Parking Strategy 
18908/1002I plan has been constructed, surfaced and permanently marked out.  
The car parking area so provided shall be maintained as a permanent ancillary to 
the development and shall be used for no other purpose thereafter.    

 
Reason:  To ensure adequate parking provision at all times so that the 
development does not prejudice the free flow of traffic or the safety on the 
neighbouring highway in accordance with policy 8 (b) (ii) of the North 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy. 

 
8. Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling on site a lighting scheme for the 

development hereby permitted in particular the communal parking areas and for 
the unadopted private driveways of the site shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority.  The lighting shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details and timetable for installation and shall be 
maintained as such thereafter.  

  
Reason:  In order to help safeguard future residents and to help minimise 
opportunities for crime and disorder in accordance with policy 8 (e) (iv) of the 
North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy. 

 
9.  The dwellings hereby approved shall incorporate measures to limit water use to 

no more than 105 litres per person per day within the home and external water 
use of no more than 5 litres per day in accordance with the optional standard 36 
(2b) of Approved Document G of the Building Regulations (2015). 

Page 9



 
 Reason:  To ensure that the development complies with policy 9 of the North 
 Joint Core Strategy. 
 

(Members voted on the officers’ recommendation to approve the application) 
 

(Voting: For: 9; Abstain 1) 
 

The application was therefore  
APPROVED 

 
42 KET/2020/0208 - Hanwood Park (Parcel R22), Barton Seagrave  

 

Proposed Development 
 

*4.2 Approval of Reserved Matters 
(EIA): All details in respect of 
KET/2015/0967 for 350 dwellings 
at Hanwood Park (Parcel R22), 
Barton Seagrave. 

 
          Application No:  KET/2020/0208 
 
Speaker: 
 
Caroline Chave attended the meeting 
and addressed the Committee as the 
agent for the proposed development. 
The agent stated they had worked 
proactively with officers and considered 
a good standard had been set for future 
parcels and through a series of design 
workshops had carefully created variety 
to the scheme. The agent referred to 
biodiversity within the development and 
bespoke high-quality street scenes with 
a footpath linked to the school and a 
cycleway in the vicinity. 
 
Following the speaker’s comments, 
members asked questions of 
clarification to the agent. 

 Decision 
 
Members received a report to seek approval 

of Reserved Matters relating to access, 

appearance, landscaping, layout and scale 

for a parcel of land identified on the 

Hanwood Park Strategic Master Plan at R22 

for residential development. The proposal 

was seeking to deliver a total of 350 

residential units comprising of 296 family 

dwellings and 54 apartments. A detached 

three storied block would contain 30 of the 

proposed apartments. 

 

A presentation pack from the Developer had 

been distributed to each member which 

contained detailed images of the layout, 

proposed street scenes and property types. 

An adjournment time of 5 minutes was given 

to the Committee to peruse the information 

contained therein.  

 

It was recommended in the report that 

planning permission be granted, subject to 

the conditions set out in the report. 

 

The Planning Officer addressed the 
Committee and presented the report, 
providing full and comprehensive details. 
 

During the debate, a member congratulated 

the work of officers and considered it to be a 

good scheme. Another member raised a 

query in relation to the width of the footpath 

and cycle path which was confirmed to be 3 

metres wide therefore one extra metre to 

Page 10



accommodate both pedestrians and cyclists. 

 

Members heard that utilities were already 

available in relation to broadband and the 

proposal was a sustainable urban extension 

which encouraged walking and cycling. 

 
A member asked if special Bee Bricks had 
been considered. The Biodiversity Officer 
would welcome this but explained that 
people do get nervous about this subject but 
she would like to introduce this process with 
a gentle approach in the future. 
  
A query was raised in relation to open space 
for occupiers of flats and Members heard  
there was plenty of open space and 
recreational activities all within walking 
distance. 
 
A member questioned lighting for the open 
space areas which would be discussed with 
officers and highway engineers. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Dalziel and 
seconded by Councillor Rielly that the 
application be approved in line with the 
officer’s recommendation. 
 
It was agreed that the application be 

APPROVED subject to the following 

conditions: 

 
1.  The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out other than in 

accordance with the approved plans and details listed below.  
 

Reason: In the interests of securing an appropriate form of development in 
accordance with Policy 8 of the North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy 

 
2.  All external surfacing works (materials) and hard landscaping works to  R22 

shall be carried out, maintained, and implemented in accordance with drawings: 
10060.03(E)- Materials Dispersion & 10060.13(E)-Surface Finishes unless 
subsequently agreed between the local planning authority and developer by 
exchange of letter.  

 
Reason: To promote and deliver the Councils design objectives in accordance 
with Policy 8 of the North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy and the aims 
and objectives of the revised National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
3.  All external and internal biodiversity works shall be carried out, maintained, and 

implemented in accordance with the submitted and approved details prior to 
occupation of each individual phase within parcel R22. 

Page 11



 
Reason: To promote and deliver the Council's biodiversity objectives in 
accordance with Policy 4 of the North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy 
and the aims and objectives of the revised National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
4.  The approved landscaping scheme and boundary enhancement measures shall 

be implemented strictly in accordance with the approved details in the first 
available planting season after commencement of the development. Any trees 
planted in public areas which within a period of 10 years of planting die, are 
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased in the view of the Local 
Planning Authority, shall be replaced in the next available planting season with 
others of a similar size and species.  

 
Reason: To reinforce and deliver important landscape features and promote 
and deliver the Council's environmental protection objectives in accordance with 
Policies 8 and 19 of the North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy and the 
aims and objectives of the revised National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
5.  Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved details of the 

siting, design and appearance of street lighting shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval in writing. The scheme thereafter shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To promote and deliver the Council's design objectives in accordance 
with Policy 8 of the North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy and the aims 
and objectives of the revised National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
6.  Notwithstanding the previously approved Construction Environmental 

Management Plan at outline stage, prior to commencement of the development 
hereby approved a Construction Management Plan (CEMP) shall be  submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing.  The CEMP shall include 
and specify provision to be made for the following: 
a) Overall strategy for managing environmental impacts which arise during 
construction 

        b) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction  
c) Control of noise emanating from the site during the construction period 
d) Hours of construction work for the development shall be limited as follows. All 
site preparation or construction activities involving driver operated machinery 
shall not take place between the hours of 18.00-08.00 Mondays to Fridays and 
13:00-09:00 on Saturdays and no works shall take place on Sunday or 
Bank/Public Holidays. All other site preparation or construction related activities 
without driver operated machinery, shall not take place between the hours 18:00 
and 07.00 Mondays to Fridays and 13.00 and 08.00 on Saturdays and no works 
shall take place on Sunday or Bank/Public Holidays and not at any other time or 
day 
e) Location, scale and appearance of contractors' compounds, materials 
storage, and other storage arrangements, for cranes and plant, equipment, and 
related temporary infrastructure 
f) Designation, layout and design of construction access and egress points 

       g) Internal site circulation routes 
       h) Directional signage (on and off site) 
           i) Provision for emergency vehicles 

Page 12



j) Provision for all site operatives, visitors and construction vehicles loading and 
unloading plant and materials 

      k) Provision for all site operatives, visitors and construction vehicles for  
      parking and turning within the site during the construction period 

       l) Details of measures to prevent mud and other such material migrating 
          onto the highway from construction vehicles on a daily basis 
          m) Routing agreement for construction traffic 
       n) Enclosure of phase or development parcel and the erection and 
           maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays and  
           facilities for public viewing, where appropriate; and  
        o) Waste audit and scheme for waste minimisation and 
           recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction 
           works  
           p) Delivery times (which for the avoidance of doubt shall be outside of  
           pick-up and drop-off times of Hayfield Cross Primary School) 
           q) A strategy for resolving and responding to any complaints received  
           regarding construction activities  
 

The scheme thereafter shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details. 

 
Reason: To promote and deliver the Councils environmental protection 
objectives in accordance with Policy 8 of the North Northamptonshire Joint Core 
Strategy and the aims and objectives of the revised National Planning Policy 
Framework.   

 
7.  Within 12 months of the development hereby approved commencing, a written 

scheme setting out the arrangements and agreements for the future 
maintenance and management of the native shrub as a single continuous 
hedge and boundary treatment provided along Cranford Road/Hanwood Park 
Road to be retained in perpetuity shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The scheme thereafter shall be implemented 
in accordance with the approved details.  

 
Reason: To protect important landscape features and promote and deliver the 
Councils environmental protection objectives in accordance with Policies 8 and 
19 of the North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy and the aims and 
objectives of the revised National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
8.  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development Order 2015 or any Order amending, revoking and/or re-
enacting that Order, with or without modification. No extension or alterations 
relating to Class A, B, C & E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 or Part 2 Class A of 
Schedule 2 shall be erected without the prior written consent of the Local 
Panning Authority. 

 
Reason: To secure the satisfactory development of the site, protect residential 
amenity and comply with the aims and objectives of the NPPF. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



(Members voted on the officers’ recommendation to approve the application) 
 

(Voting: Unanimous) 
 

The application was therefore  
APPROVED 

 
43 NC/21/00072/OUT - Land off Centrix Business Park, Napier Road, Corby  

 

Proposed Development 
 
*4.3  Application for land off Phoenix 

Parkway to provide an 
engineered development platform 
and Outline application for the 
development of an employment 
park comprising up to 43,000 sqm 
B2 use with all matters reserved 
apart from access. 

 
          Application No. 

NC/21/00072/OUT 
 
Speaker: 
 
Bernard Ralph attended the meeting 
and addressed the Committee as the 
agent for the proposed development. 
The agent asked the Committee if it 
would resolve to approve the planning 
application, subject to a s106 
Agreement and ecological mitigation be 
dealt with via condition. 
 
Following the speaker’s comments, 
members asked questions of 
clarification to the agent. 

 Decision  
 
Members received a report on a proposal for 

a hybrid planning application in two parts. 

The applicant for the present application 

Storefield Group Limited, sought full 

planning permission for proposed 

engineering and enabling works to level the 

site within the first part. The second part 

was seeking outline planning permission for 

proposed B2 (general industrial) 

employment uses with all matters reserved 

except access. It is acknowledged that the 

proposal straddles the administrative 

boundary with former East 

Northamptonshire District Council. The 

applicant proposed the development of up to 

43,000m2 of B2 use. 

 

It was recommended in the report that 

planning permission be refused for the 

reason set out in the report. However, the 

Planning Officer, addressed the Committee 

and provided an update asking the 

Committee to consider deferring the 

planning application due to further 

information which had been received from 

the applicant and the agent which needed to 

be considered further by officers. 

 

During the debate, a member raised 
questions in relation to a badger survey and 
the officer responded that this could be dealt 
with via a method statement and a pre-
commencement condition. 
 

A member made a comment that the site 

was derelict with no productive use and 

queried why we could not grant planning 

Page 14



permission as it was an industrial area. 

 

The Legal Adviser informed the Committee 

that due to the information that had been 

recently submitted this should be properly 

considered and we would then need to 

follow due process and bring a 

recommendation back to Committee. 

 

Members asked if the application could 

return to this Committee as soon as  

practically possible.  

 

It was proposed by Councillor Tebbutt and 
seconded by Councillor Allebone that the 
application be deferred. 
 
It was agreed that the application be 

DEFERRED, contrary to the 

recommendation in the report, on the 

grounds that further information had been 

received from the applicant and agent which 

needed to be considered by officers.  

 
  
(Members voted on the motion to defer the application.  Although the recommendation 

in the report was refusal, officers asked the committee to consider deferring the 

planning application due to further information that had been received from the 

applicant and agent which needed to be considered by officers). 

 
(Voting: For: 9; Against 1) 

 
The application was therefore  

DEFERRED 
 

44       Delegated Officers Report  
 
None. 
 

45      Exempt Items 
 
None.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



46       Close of Meeting  
 
The meeting closed at 8.33 pm. 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Chair 

 
___________________________________ 

Date 
 

Page 16



                                    

 

 
 
 

North Northamptonshire Strategic Planning Committee  
11 April 2022 

 

 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Location Plan 
 
Scheme of Delegation 
 
This application is brought to the North Northamptonshire Council’s Strategic Planning 
Committee because it falls outside of the Council’s Officer Scheme of Delegation. The  
reason being that a material written objection has been received from a relevant parish 
council that is contrary to the officer recommendation. Additionally there has been 
more than three written material objections which cannot be overcome by the 
imposition of conditions.   
 
1. Recommendation 

 
1.1. That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the conditions being varied 

as listed in Section 11 below. 
 
2. The Proposal 

 

Application 
Reference 
 

NN/21/00058/WASVOC  

Case Officer Helen Marsden 

Location 
 

Storefield Plant 
Gretton Brook Road 
Earlstrees Industrial Estate 
Corby 
Northamptonshire 
NN17 4BA 

Development 
 

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission ref. 
20/00022/WASVOC to increase the stack height from 
25m (currently permitted) to 35m 

Applicant 
 

ESF Energy Ltd 

Agent GP Planning Ltd 

Ward Corby Rural Ward 

Overall Expiry 
Date 

29 April 2022 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4.1



2.1 Permission for a waste use at the site was first granted in 2009. The Renewable 
Fuel Production and Recycling Facility has permission to process up to 154,000 
tonnes per annum of refuse derived fuel (RDF). Over time elements of the 
original permission have been varied including the building design, site layout, 
catchment area and annual throughput (see the table below in section 4 for the 
recent relevant planning history). The planning permissions for the facility were 
implemented in early 2014 by the digging of foundations and laying concrete 
and since that time the landowner has been endeavouring to secure an 
agreement with a company to invest in the plant and build and operate the 
facility.  
 

2.2 The landowner has now secured new interest from a potential investor and 
operator (the applicant) who, following a review of the permissions relating to 
the site, considers the consented stack height of 25m inadequate for the 
purposes of Environmental Permitting requirements for the following reasons: 
 

a) The maximum predicted Process Contribution (PC) has not been 
provided. The report only provides the peak off site concentration at 
the closest receptor whereas the Environmental Permitting 
Regulations require provision of the highest ground level 
concentration at ‘any’ location. The maximum off-site impact will be 
much higher due to the short stack and as such the applicant does 
not consider the stack height to be adequate. 

b) The Air Quality Assessment does not consider acidification or nutrient 
nitrogen deposition for habitat sites, which is a key requirement for 
the Environmental Permitting Regulations. 

 
2.3 Consequently, the applicant is proposing to increase the stack height to 35m, 

which includes a margin of flexibility, to ensure the plant achieves Best Available 
Techniques (BAT) and improved air dispersion necessary to secure an 
Environmental Permit required to operate the facility. The stack may be built 
lower than 35m if allowed by the Environmental Permit. No other changes are 
proposed. There are two planning permissions for the facility which has resulted 
in two planning applications on the agenda for determination, that have the 
same issues and considerations, but which have separate officer reports. 

 
3. Site Description 

 
3.1 The application site is located to the north of Gretton Brook Road, to the north 

of Corby on the periphery of Earlstrees Industrial Estate. Access to the site is 
from Gretton Brook Road, and improvements to the access to facilitate the 
waste development have been approved but not yet implemented. The site is 
part of the area formerly used by the ironstone industry for repair and 
maintenance of plant and equipment. It is now used for inert waste recycling 
with industrial uses in the adjacent existing buildings. The site is bound by dense 
woodland to the north, east and west in Brookfield Plantation (a County Wildlife 
Site), and a power station and industrial estate lies to the south beyond Gretton 
Brook Road. Gretton Brook runs along the southern boundary of the site. The 
nearest residential receptor is the travellers site approximately 800m to the east, 
and the village of Gretton lies over 2km to the north. 
 

3.2 Rockingham Castle scheduled monument is located approximately 2.6km to the 
west, and Kirby Hall scheduled monument is located approximately 2.8km to 

Page 18



the north east. A public footpath runs through Brookfield Plantation within 200m 
of the site. 
 

4. Relevant Planning History 

 
4.1 The following table lists all relevant previous planning applications: 

 

Application Ref. Description Approved/ 
Refused 

Date 
decision 
issued 

CO/05/0065 Change of use from scrap 
metal yard to use for 

sorting and crushing of 
inert waste materials to 

produce recycled 
aggregates and soils 

Approved 10/05/2005 

08/00097/WAS The establishment of a 
renewable fuel production 

and recycling facility 

Approved 21/04/2009 

09/00052/WAS Building extension and 
revised access to the 

renewable fuel production 
and recycling facility 

Approved 22/10/2009 

13/00060/WASNMA Non-material amendment 
to permission ref. 
09/00052/WAS for 

alterations to the building 
elevations and location of 
openings and revised site 

layout 

Approved 18/12/2013 

13/00061/WASNMA Non-material amendment 
to permission ref. 
08/00097/WAS for 

alterations to the building 
elevations and location of 
openings and revised site 

layout 

Approved 18/12/2013 

14/00093/WASVOC Variation of condition 20 of 
permission ref. 

08/00097/WAS for a 
revised catchment area 

Approved 24/03/2015 

14/00094/WASVOC Variation of condition 21 of 
permission ref. 

09/00052/WAS for a 
revised catchment area 

Approved 24/03/2015 

20/00022/WASVOC Variation of condition 2 and 
3 of permission ref. 

14/00093/WASVOC to 
amend building elevations 
and annual throughput of 

waste 

Approved 05/08/2020 

Page 19



20/00023/WASVOC Variation of conditions 2 
and 3 of permission ref. 
14/00094/WASVOC to 

amend building elevations 
and annual throughput of 

waste 

Approved 05/08/2020 

 
 
5. Consultation Responses 

 
Consultation on the planning application took place from 25/11/2021 to 
20/12/2021. Notification of the planning application was made to the relevant 
statutory consultees and also to the local ward councillors. The application was 
advertised by way of a site notice and advertisement in the Northampton 
Evening Telegraph on 25/11/2021. The following is a summary of the responses 
received during consultation on this application. Full copies of responses can 
be made available to the committee members on request.  
 
Representations from statutory consultees and local councillors 
 

5.1 NNC Environmental Protection The proposed thermal treatment plant will run 
under an environmental permit issued and regulated by the Environment 
Agency (EA). The EA have confirmed that have no objections to the increase in 
stack height, but the development will require a variation of the existing 
environmental permit. The NPPF is quite clear in this respect. Paragraph 188 
states ‘The focus of planning policies and decisions should be on whether the 
proposed development is an acceptable use of the land, rather than the control 
of processes or emissions (where these are the subject of separate pollution 
control regimes). Planning decisions should assume that these regimes will 
operate effectively’. In this case the site has extant planning permission for the 
activity as described and emissions will be controlled through the environmental 
permit. As such no comments or objections are raised as emissions will be 
controlled through the environmental permitting regime. 
 

5.2 Environment Agency 
No objections to the applications but bring to the applicant’s attention that the 
development will require a variation to the existing environmental permit under 
the Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016, 
Regulation 12. 
 

5.3 Highway Authority (NNC) 
No comments. 
 

5.4 Gretton Parish Council – Object to the applications 
The Parish Council objected to the original planning applications on many valid 
grounds, and the numerous representations/written objections from residents 
provided clear evidence of the overwhelming public opposition to the scheme. 
The Parish Council are disappointed that despite the significant concerns raised 
previously relating to the issues of landscape and impact of emissions, the 
promoters of these applications have brought forward proposals which the 
Parish Council considers will be further damaging without any attempt at 
mitigation. The Parish Council makes representations on the following: 
 

Page 20



 Effect on Landscape 
 
Increasing the height of the chimney stacks from 25m to 35m will make 
these even more prominent, being visible above mature trees, and will 
cause visual impact on the landscape. This will cause significant harm to 
the views particularly from the Welland Valley and other areas of 
treasured countryside which will transform the present rural area into an 
industrial landscape. 
 

 Impact of Emissions and Pollution 
 
The Parish Council originally expressed concern at the proximity of the 
site to the village of Gretton and other communities. The plant will affect 
air quality and likely to emit potentially harmful gases, dust particles and 
other undesirable materials. The site is located to the south-west of 
Gretton and the Parish Council object on the ground that all emissions 
and odours emanating from the plant will be carried on the prevailing 
wind to the village where there will be significant impact and nuisance. 
The Parish Council understand the raising of the height of the stack will 
create an impact over a wider area leading to harmful impacts on public 
health and also on wildlife habitats and biodiversity. 

 
5.5 Corby Town Council 

Corby Town Council are aware of local concerns regarding this site and are 
monitoring the applications. The Town Council wish to be involved in any 
ongoing consultations/meetings involving this development. 
 

5.6 Weldon Parish Council 
No comments received. 
 

5.7 Deene and Deenethorpe Parish Council 
No comments received. 
 

5.8 Councillor Kevin Watt (NNC Corby Rural) 
Councillor Kevin Watt objects to the applications for the following reasons: 
 

 Gretton Brook Road is not suitable for heavy goods vehicles due to its 
narrow nature and position of access. There has since been approval of 
a crematorium on Corby Road increasing the road usage considerably. 
 

 Gretton Brook Road is in poor repair due to the impact of heavy goods 
vehicles. This plant will only exacerbate the poor state of the road. 

 

 The original application was faulty if it needs amending. The applicant 
attempted minimum investment by proposing the shortest stack possible, 
and also demonstrated a lack of knowledge of Air Quality regulations in 
proposing a short stack. This indicates the applicant does not have the 
knowledge to safely run an incineration plant and that it will receive 
minimum investment. 

 

 The applicant states development commenced in early 2014 by the 
digging of foundations and laying concrete. 7 years later it is clear there 

Page 21



is no market for this incineration plant. The applicant cannot raise funds 
to construct the plant. Will they have sufficient funds to run the plant 
safely? 

 

 Burning leads to poor air quality. The plant will emit NOX, SOX, PMI 2.5 
CO2 and other gases which will reduce the air quality in the surrounding 
residential locations. Going forward North Northamptonshire will aim to 
improve its air quality and should this plant ever be constructed it would 
blight air quality in this area for at least the next 25 years. 

 
5.9 Councillor David Sims (NNC Corby Rural) 

Councillor David Sims objects to the applications for the following reasons: 
 

 Visual impact and pollution effects on Gretton and Kirby Hall is a concern. 
NPPF paragraph 199 is specific about considering the impact of 
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage 
asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation (and the 
more impact the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is 
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, 
total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance. 

 Increasing heavy goods vehicle movements to the suggested volumes 
on an already heavily used Gretton Brook Road calls into question the 
general traffic impact and sustainability. Bearing in mind other local 
planning approvals still to be developed, for example the crematorium on 
Corby Road, increase traffic movements and possible pedestrians. 

 
Representations arising from public advertisement 

 
5.10 A total of 6 representations have been received objecting to the applications. 

The following is a summary of the objections raised by representations received 
during consultation on this application. Full copies of responses can be made 
available to the committee members on request. 
 

 Object to a waste plant of this nature in this location. An incinerator is not 
an environmental-friendly way to deal with waste. The Council should be 
promoting reduce, reuse, recycle as per the waste management 
hierarchy model. 

 Major concerns regarding the impact on health and the environment from 
emissions from the plant over Gretton, Corby and other surrounding 
villages and towns in Northamptonshire, Rutland and Leicestershire 
arising from an increase in the stack height from 25m to 35m. The fact 
that the stack now needs to be higher to meet dispersion rates is of great 
concern to local residents. 

 Major concerns regarding the emissions from vehicles transporting the 
waste from many miles away to feed it. 

 The stack will be by far the highest and most prominent feature within the 
area and will be seen across the protected Welland Valley and from the 
Grade I listed Kirby Hall. 

 The applicant is again seeking to increase the scope and impact of the 
development, as they did with various changes in incineration method 
and with the extended 30-mile limit. Without all the changes the 
developer says the waste plant isn’t viable and they don’t have the 

Page 22



financial backing. If this is the case then the sustainability of both the 
original and new applications is reason enough to reject the applications. 

 Reiterate the Gretton Parish Council’s objections. 
 
6. Relevant Planning Policies and Considerations 

 
6.1 Statutory Duty 

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the Development Plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.   

 
6.2 National Policy 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) 
National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) (2014) 
 

6.3 The NPPW sets out the Government’s ambition to work towards a more 
sustainable and efficient approach to resource use and management. This 
includes the delivery of sustainable development and helping to secure the re-
use, recovery or disposal of waste in line with the principles of the waste 
hierarchy without endangering human health or harming the environment. The 
NPPW forms part of the overall national planning policy and is a material 
planning consideration in decisions on waste related planning applications. 
 

6.4 The NPPW states that Waste Planning Authorities (WPA) should only expect 
applicant to demonstrate a quantitative or market need for waste management 
facilities where they are not consistent with an up-to-date Local Plan. The WPA 
also requires the WPA to consider the environmental and amenity impacts and 
concern themselves with implementing the planning strategy in the Local Plan 
and not with control of processes which are a matter for the pollution control 
authorities. WPAs should work on the assumption that relevant pollution control 
regimes will be properly applied and enforced. 

 
6.5 Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (NMWLP) (2017) 

Policy 10 – Northamptonshire’s waste management capacity 
Policy 11 – Spatial strategy for waste management 
Policy 12 – Development criteria for waste management facilities (non-inert and 
hazardous) 
Policy 13 – Locations for waste management uses (WL16 Corby –Earlstrees) 
Policy 18 – Addressing the impact of proposed minerals and waste development 
Policy 19 – Encouraging sustainable transport 
Policy 21 – Landscape Character 
Policy 22 – Historic Environment 
Policy 23 – Layout and design quality 
 

6.6 North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (NNJCS) (2016) 
Policy 3 – Landscape character 
Policy 8 – Place shaping principles 

 
7. Evaluation 

 
The key issues for consideration are: 

 Principle of Development 

Page 23



 Landscape and Visual Impact 

 Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 

 Cultural Heritage 
 

7.1 Principle of Development 
 
7.1.1 The previous planning permissions starting in 2008 (and 2009 and current 

extant permissions (20/00022/WASVOC and 20/00023/WASVOC) establish the 
principle of an energy from waste facility at this site in planning land use terms. 
The permissions have been lawfully implemented in early 2014 by the digging 
of foundations and laying concrete. The site is within the central spine and 
complies with the spatial strategy for waste management (NMWLP Policy 11). 
Furthermore, the site is within one of the identified locations for waste 
management facilities (WL16 Corby – Earlstrees) listed in Policy 13 of the 
NMWLP. Therefore, notwithstanding that there are objections by the local 
community to these applications against the principle of the development, these 
cannot be given any weight in the determination of the applications. The 
applications are solely to vary the planning conditions relating to the plans and 
elevations submitted with the 2020 applications and no other aspects of the 
permitted development. There is no change to the permitted maximum 154,000 
tonnes per annum throughput and the related HGV traffic numbers. There are 
no grounds to reconsider the acceptability of the location for this development. 
Consideration of this application is restricted to the acceptability of the variation 
now proposed to increase the stack height from 25m (currently permitted) to 
35m.  

 
7.2 Landscape and Visual Impact 
 
7.2.1 Gretton Parish Council, Councillor David Sims and local residents have raised 

objections that the increase in height of the stack would cause landscape 
detriment. Policy 18 of the NMWLP seeks to ensure built development is of a 
design and layout that has regard to its visual appearance in the context of the 
defining characteristics of the local area. Policy 3 of the NNJCS requires 
development to conserve and where possible enhance the character and 
qualities of the local landscape. 
 

7.2.2 The site is bounded by Gretton Brook Road and Brookfield Plantation and 
situated adjacent to an area of Corby that is characterised by industrial 
development. The proposal to increase the stack height of an already approved 
facility by 10m (less if the environmental permit allows) to 35m should be 
considered in the context that there are already structures in the Corby industrial 
estates which are more prominent, particularly the Corby Power Station stack 
at 70m high (350 metres to the southwest) and the Rockingham Speedway 
stands (1.4km to the east) (although the stands have permission for demolition 
if the owner chooses to do this). There is also a large logistic building (300m x 
100m footprint -height not known) immediately south of the site at the other side 
of Gretton Road and beyond this to the west the larger part of the  Earlstrees 
industrial area (site WL 16 in the NMWLP)  and to the south the Corby North 
Eastern industrial areas (site WL18 in the NMWLP). Permission also exists for 
an energy recovery facility on land off Shelton Road, Corby (1,25km to the south 
east within the North Eastern industrial area, which has permission for a stack 
at 85m high). The landscape and visual impact of the proposed 35m stack 
therefore has to be considered in the context of the current built and consented 

Page 24



industrial developments in this part of Corby. Whilst it is acknowledged that the 
proposed development will have some landscape and visual impact, this will be 
largely limited to the localised area of the site and on balance there is 
considered to be no justification to refuse the change to the stack height in 
respect of landscape and visual impact having regard to Policy 18 of the 
NMWLP and Policy 3 of the NNJCS. 

 
7.3 Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 
 
7.3.1 Policy 18 of the NMWLP requires that proposals for waste development should 

demonstrate that any impacts associated with it such as air emissions have 
been addressed to ensure that the environment and local amenity are protected. 
Amenity policy is reinforced through Policy 8 of the NNJCS which states that 
development should ‘ensure quality of life and safer and healthier communities 
by protecting amenity by not resulting in an unacceptable impact on the 
amenities of future occupiers, neighbouring properties or the wider area, by 
reason of noise, vibration, smell, light or other pollution, loss of light or 
overlooking’. It is necessary to consider therefore whether the proposals will be 
acceptable in terms of amenity impact having regard to the requirements of 
these policies. Gretton Parish Council, Councillor Kevin Watt, Councillor David 
Sims and local residents have raised objections that emissions from the plant 
would cause detrimental impact to health and the environment. 
 
Air Emissions 
 

7.3.2 The applicant explains the proposed increase in height of the stack is required 
because the stack height of 25m has been found to be inadequate for the 
purposes of environmental permitting (see paragraph 2.2 above). The applicant 
has therefore submitted a Stack Height Analysis to accompany the application 
to determine an appropriate stack height that is in line with Best Available 
Techniques (BAT) and the key requirements of the environmental permitting 
regulations. The emissions of NOx and ammonia (NH3) were used to assess the 
air quality impacts of the waste facility with varying stack heights. The analysis 
concludes that the stack height of 25m is acceptable for human health 
exposure, however taking into consideration sensitive local ecological receptors 
and the requirement to meet BATfor permitting, a stack height of 31m would be 
more appropriate. In order to allow a degree of flexibility following future 
dialogue with the EA, the applicant decided to apply to increase the stack height 
to 35m. 
 

7.3.3 To enable operation of the site, the EA have advised a variation to the existing 
environmental permit will be required. This will enable the EA to undertake a 
more technical assessment of the emissions generation of the plant and provide 
a mechanism for control to ensure acceptable levels are maintained and that 
the emissions from the plant comply with the required standards. Under the 
NPPW the WPA is required to assume that the relevant pollution control regime 
will be properly applied and enforced by the EA which has legal powers to fulfil 
this role. Ultimately, controlling emissions to air to an acceptable level in 
accordance with the specified technical standards is the responsibility of the 
Environment Agency. 
 

7.3.4 Gretton Parish Council, Councillor Kevin Watt, Councillor David Sims and local 
residents have objected on grounds of potential health and environmental 

Page 25



impacts from emissions. However, the EA has not objected to the air quality 
impacts of the development (and referred to the need for a variation to the 
existing environmental permit). Furthermore, the Environmental Health Officers 
at the Corby and Thrapston Environmental Protection Teams have not raised 
objections regarding air quality impacts. There are no outstanding matters 
relating to air quality and the proposal is considered acceptable in respect of 
minimising potential adverse impacts from air quality to an acceptable level in 
accordance with the requirements in Policy 18 of the NMWLP and Policy 8 of 
the NNJCS. 
 

7.4 Cultural Heritage 
 
7.4.1 Policy 18 of the NMWLP requires the impact on heritage assets to be assessed. 

MWWLP Policy 22 requires proposals for waste development as sites with 
heritage assets, to conserve and enhance the historic environment through 
careful management of their significance and settings, including avoiding or 
mitigating potentially adverse effects, and enhancement through restoration 
schemes. Policy 2 of the NNJCS seeks to protect heritage assets. Rockingham 
Castle (Grade I) and the associated Park and Garden (Grade II*) and scheduled 
monument are located approximately 2.6km to the west, and Kirby Hall (Grade 
I) and the associated Park and Garden (Grade II*) and scheduled monument 
are located approximately 2.8km to the north east. 
 

7.4.2 Councillor David Sims and local residents have raised concerns that increasing 
the height of the stack will have a negative impact on Kirby Hall. The two 
scheduled monuments in the vicinity are in excess of 2.5km distant from the 
site. The proposed stack will not be visible from any designated asset to the 
west, but glimpses of the stack may be possible from the east although it would 
be viewed in the context of the nearby industrial infrastructure including 
industrial buildings of greater height. Kirby Hall and gardens are set in the valley 
and the topography and intervening tree vegetation, and other built 
development (including Rockingham Speedway), along with the 2.8km 
distance, screen views from this heritage asset. As such there is considered to 
be no justification to refuse the change to the stack height in respect of impact 
on cultural heritage having regard to Policy 18 and 22 of the NMWLP and Policy 
2 of the NNJCS. 

 
8. Other Matters 

 
8.1 Traffic and Highways Safety: Councillor Kevin Watt and Councillor David Sims 

noted concerns regarding HGV’s exacerbating the poor state of repair of Gretton 
Brook Road. These are noted however no change to the permitted maximum 
annum throughput and related HGV traffic numbers is proposed and the 
Highway Authority has not objected to the development. The traffic movements 
are on the local highway network which serves Corby industrial estates. There 
is a planning condition which prevents HGV traffic from travelling through the 
village of Gretton. 
 

8.2 Viability of the Development: Councillor Kevin Watt and local residents raise 
concern that the various changes sought over recent years call into question the 
viability of the plant, and if/when operational would it be run safely. Having 
regard to the NPPW it is not necessary for the WPA to expect the applicant to 

Page 26



demonstrate a quantitative or market need for waste management facilities 
where they are consistent with an up-to-date Local Plan. 
 

8.3 Equality: The proposal would not give rise to any concerns with regard to 
equality. 

 
9. Conclusion / Planning Balance 

 
9.1 The principle of an energy from waste facility at this site is already established 

and the development has technically been implemented. The proposed variation 
to the existing permitted energy from waste facility is not considered to give rise 
to any significant detrimental impacts in terms of air quality, landscape and 
visual impact. Air quality will also be controlled by the Environment Agency as 
the pollution control authority under a variation to the existing Environmental 
Permit. It is therefore considered that the applications should be approved and 
the conditions varied as listed below. 

 
10. Recommendation 

 
10.1 That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the conditions being varied 

as listed below.  
 

11. Conditions  

 
1. Commencement 

 
The development to which this permission relates has commenced.  

   
Reason: To clarify the status of the permitted development. 
 

2. Scope of Permission 
 

Except as otherwise required by conditions attached to this planning permission 
the development hereby permitted shall be implemented and maintained in 
accordance with the details, mitigation measures and recommendations in the 
following approved documents and plans submitted under planning permissions 
08/00097/WAS, and 14/00093/WASVOC and 20/00022/WASVOC and Non-
Material Amendment 13/00061/WASNMA:  

   
 i. Submitted site plan, GPP/SE/GBR/08/04  
 ii. Ecological Constraints Appraisal by Lockhart Garratt dated 7.10.08  
 iii. Flood Risk Assessment by Abington Consulting Engineers dated 6 Jan 2009  
 iv. Comprehensive access & highway improvement plan 07046/260 dated 

February 2009  
 v. Proposed Site Layout Plan, drawing GL000015D4001 Revision PO3  
 vi Proposed Elevations, drawing 201 Revision D, Proposed GA Elevations 

154,000 Tonnes Per Year Throughput Proposed GA Elevations, 154,000 
Tonnes Per Year Throughput, Drawing 201 Revision E 

 vii Proposed Elevations, drawing 202 Revision B, Proposed GA Elevations 
154,000 Tonnes Per Year Throughput Proposed GA Elevations 154,000 
Tonnes Per Year Throughput, Drawing 202 Revision C 
vii. Air Quality Assessment by Air Quality Consultants Ltd dated April 2020 

Page 27



 
3. The development hereby permitted shall not exceed a total annual throughput 

of 154,000 tonnes per annum. 
 

4. The developer shall ensure that systems are in place to ensure that the site 
accepts and processes only waste of a non hazardous nature and that systems 
are in place to deal with any prohibited wastes delivered to site. 
 

5. The applicant shall notify the Waste Planning Authority (WPA) in writing of the 
date upon which the proposed facility receives its first commercial import of 
waste for processing. 
 

Reason for conditions 2 to 5: To specify the scope of the permission, the 
commencement date of waste import operations and in the interests of the 
environment, amenity and highway safety having regard to Policy 18 of the 
Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017). 
 

Construction Hours of Working 
 

6. All works relating to construction or demolition shall be carried out only between 
the hours of 7.00am and 7.00pm Mondays to Fridays, 7.00am and 1.00pm on 
Saturdays thereafter and at no time on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the construction on site is carried out within reasonable 
hours so as to avoid disturbance to land users nearby in the interests of amenity 
having regard to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan (October 2017). 
 
Documentation 
 

7. From the date of the commencement and throughout development, a copy of 
this permission including all documents hereby approved and any other 
documents subsequently approved in accordance with this permission, shall 
always be on display at the site office for inspection during normal working 
hours. 
 
Reason: To ensure this planning permission and associated documents are 
available on site for reference and inspection. 
 
Odour and Dust 
 

8. Odour and dust shall be controlled in accordance with the scheme of control 
measures identified in the submitted planning application (Air Quality 
Assessment by Smith Grant LLP reference R1847-R01-v2 dated August 2013) 
and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Waste Planning Authority shall 
respectively include: 
 
a) For odour: an Integrated Management System which will monitor the plant 

operation and maintenance; the reception and process buildings will be 
placed under negative pressure; automatic fast acting roller doors fitted at 
all vehicular entrances on the reception building; provision of localised 
extraction at potential point sources of odour generation, minimising storage 
times for raw MSW (municipal solid waste); maintaining aerobic conditions 

Page 28



within degradable organic material during treatment, treatment of all 
extracted air through suitably designed and well maintained biological 
filtration system. 
 

b) For dust during construction: use of clean water for  dust suppression, high 
standards of housekeeping, preventative maintenance programme, effective 
staff training, potentially dusty activities located away from the potentially 
more sensitive eastern boundary and dust suppression by regular spraying  
in dry conditions. 

 
c) For dust from operations: full enclosure of all stages of the proposed 

processes, regular sweeping of the access road as necessary to avoid 
accumulation of dust and debris. 

 
9. In the event that complaints regarding, odour and/or dust are received by the 

Waste Planning Authority from any sensitive receptor, and thereafter notified to 
the operator, an immediate assessment of the complaint shall be undertaken. 
A report on the findings, with proposals for removing, reducing or mitigating 
identified adverse effects resulting from the operation, and a programme for the 
implementation of remedial measures to be undertaken shall be submitted to 
the WPA no later than 5 working days from the receipt of the complaint, unless 
a longer timescale is otherwise agreed in writing by the Waste Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason for Conditions 8 and 9: To protect the interests of the area as a whole 
and in particular nearby residential occupiers in the interests of amenity having 
regard to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 
(October 2017). 
 
Noise 
 

10. Noise emanating from activities carried out upon the site shall not exceed 50 dB 
LAeq, 1 hour during the hours 07:00 - 21:30 or 42 dB LAeq, 5 minutes during 
the hours 21:30 - 07:00 at a free-field position at the boundary of any residential 
premises which have planning consent at the time this permission is granted. 
 

11. Manufacturer's guidelines relating to the servicing and maintenance of the 
silencers shall be followed and maintenance carried out at the appropriate 
intervals. 
 

12. In the event that complaints regarding noise are received by the Waste Planning 
Authority from any sensitive receptor, and thereafter notified to the operator, an 
immediate assessment of the complaint shall be undertaken. A report on the 
findings, with proposals for removing, reducing or mitigating identified adverse 
effects resulting from the operation, and a programme for the implementation of 
remedial measures to be undertaken shall be submitted to the Waste Planning 
Authority no later than 5 working days from the receipt of the complaint, unless 
a longer timescale is otherwise agreed in writing by the Waste Planning 
Authority. 
 

Reason for Conditions 10, 11 and 12: To protect the interests of the area as a 
whole and in particular nearby residential occupiers in the interests of amenity 

Page 29



having regard to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan (October 2017). 
 

Lighting 
 

13. Lighting external to the buildings shall be in accordance with the submitted 
lighting scheme submitted on the 8 March 2012 and incorporating the following 
documents: 
 
a) Application to discharge conditions dated 12 March 2012;   

 b) Lighting Floor Layout Plan , Drawing G007-01-03 dated 02.08.11;   
 c) Lighting Elevations Plan , Drawing G007-01-03 dated 09.08.11 ;  
 d) Lighting Site Layout Plan, Drawing G007-01-03 dated 09.08.11  
 e) Lighting shall be switched  off when not required;  

f) Minimise potential effects on bat flight paths through the use of low brightness 
lighting (such as low-pressure sodium) and restriction of lighting Brookfield 
Plantation; and 
 
The approved details shall be implemented and thereafter the development 
shall be operated and maintained in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the Waste Planning Authority retains control over these 
matters, in the interests of the visual amenity of the overall development, to 
prevent light pollution and to ensure that the development is adequately lit in the 
interests of amenity having regard to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire 
Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017). 
 
Highway Safety and Access 
 

14. a) The Heavy Goods Vehicle access to and from the site shall only be gained 
via the access point onto the Gretton Brook Road shown on Drawing No. ACE 
07046/260. 
 
b) Vehicle Routing - Prior to the bringing of the plant into operation a scheme to 
control the routing of HGV's shall be submitted and agreed in writing by the 
Waste Planning Authority, which shall include no lorries or other heavy 
commercial vehicles based at or visiting the site travelling along Corby Road 
(the minor road between the village of Gretton and Gretton Brook Road) unless 
collecting waste from this village. The approved scheme shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction and operational periods of the development. 
 

15. Waste importation operations shall not commence until the access has been 
improved in accordance with the following approved details and plans: 
 
a) Location Plan, Drawing No. 11005/101 Revision A dated 11/03/11;  

 b) Proposed Highway Works Layout Sheet 1 of 3, Drawing No. 1105/102 
Revision D dated 10.03.11;  

 c) Proposed Highway Works Layout Sheet 2 of 3, Drawing 11/005/105 Revision 
B dated 08/07/11;  

 d) Proposed Highway Works Layout Sheet 3 of 3, Drawing 11/005/105 Revision 
B dated 08/07/11;  

 e) Highway works Standard Details, Drawing No. 11005/104 dated 07/04/11;  
 f) HGV Swept Path Analysis, Drawing No. 11005/107 dated 08/07/11;  

Page 30



 g) Gretton Brook Diversion Temporary Works, Drawing No. 11005/108 Revision 
A dated 16/09/11;  

 h) Gabion Wall Proposals, Drawing No. 11005/109 dated 24/11/11;  
 i) Proposed Culvert Details, Drawing No. 11005/110 dated 24/11/11;   
 j) Any gates shall be set back a minimum of 20m to the rear of the highway 

boundary (back of verge) and hung to open inwardly only.  
 
The hard surfacing shall be completed in accordance with the approved details 
in accordance with a timetable to be agreed in writing by the Waste Planning 
Authority. The development shall be constructed in strict accordance with the 
approved details and approved vision splays retained thereafter. The site 
entrance and the internal road shall be maintained in a condition free from 
potholes while in use. 
 
Reason for conditions 14 and 15: To safeguard the interests of highway safety 
and in the interests of amenity having regard to Policy 18 of the 
Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017). 
 
Wheel Cleaning and Vehicle Sheeting 
 

16. All operational vehicles leaving the site shall be cleansed of mud and other 
debris to ensure that there is no nuisance dust and no mud or debris is 
deposited on the public highway. 
 

17. The developer shall put in place a system to ensure that all operational vehicles 
arriving at and leaving the site are appropriately sealed or covered so as to 
prevent material spillage, wind blow and odour nuisance. 
 

Reason for Conditions 16 and 17: To ensure satisfactory means of access to 
the highway, safeguard the interest of users of the public highway and highway 
safety having regard to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste 
Local Plan (October 2017). 
 

Monitoring 
 

18. Heavy Goods Vehicle movements associated with the development hereby 
permitted shall be restricted to an annual average of 140 movements per day 
(i.e. the combination of HGV's entering and exiting the site averaging 70 in and 
70 out per day) and recorded details of the number of HGV vehicular 
movements, including the weight and category of waste delivered or collected, 
shall be provided to the Waste Planning Authority within seven days of a written 
request. 
 
Reason for condition 18: To control any additional pressure on the existing 
highway infrastructure, in the interests of highway safety and convenience 
having regard to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan (October 2017). 
 

19. The operating company shall keep records of the quantity of waste received by 
weight, its source and Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) movements associated with 
the development and these records shall be provided to the Waste Planning 
Authority within seven days of a written request. All such information supplied 
will be treated on a confidential basis. 

Page 31



 
20. The operators of the site shall submit an annual report in writing to the Waste 

Planning Authority within one month of the end of the calendar year and at 12 
monthly intervals thereafter. The annual report shall incorporate the records 
required by conditions 18 and 19 above and demonstrate compliance with 
catchment area controls required in condition 21. This information shall also be 
provided within 4 weeks of a written request by the Waste Planning Authority. 
 

Reason for condition 19 and 20: To enable the Waste Planning Authority to 
monitor progress towards achieving the principles in Policy 10 of the 
Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017) and to ensure 
that waste materials are dealt with close to their source in accordance with 
Policy 19 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 
2017). 
 

Catchment Area 
 

21. With the exception of a 15% calendar year allowance, and the exclusion of the 
types of waste in condition 30 all waste materials to be processed on the site 
shall originate from locations within the indicative catchment area as shown on 
No. 4 submitted Plans by Monksleigh referenced 'Task No. 016AZ 1-
4,'Estimated Drive Time Service Areas', attached to this planning permission, 
unless expressly approved in writing by the Waste Planning Authority on the 
basis that evidence is submitted which the Waste Planning Authority agrees 
demonstrates: 
 
- The waste is part of a temporary (two years or less) contract while processing 
facilities are constructed closer to the source; or  
- Other circumstances where there is a justified need to utilise the facility. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the materials are dealt with as close to their source as 
possible in the interests of self sufficiency and sustainability having regard to 
Policy 12 of the Minerals and Waste local Plan (October 2017). 
 
Visual Amenity and Design 
 

22. The new buildings shall be constructed to match the existing building on the site 
and the exterior shall be constructed of corrugated steel sheeting and finished 
in dark grey. 
 
Reason: To protect the interests of local visual amenity having regard to Policy 
18 and 23 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 
2017). 
 
Biodiversity and Landscaping 
 

23. The management and maintenance of the existing planting alongside Gretton 
Brook shall be in accordance with the details in the submitted Discharge of 
Conditions statement received on 8 March 2012 and undertaken on a 7 year 
cycle for the duration of the operational life of the development hereby permitted 
including; 
 
- Coppicing of shrub species to maintain visual screening of the development 

Page 32



from Gretton Brook Road;  
 - Management of damaged trees in the interests of both health and safety and 

biodiversity;  
 - Replacement planting (to exclude Common Ash) shall use species that are 

native, of local provenance and include a high diversity of species in order to 
provide varied food sources for native birds as well as visual screening and 
general biodiversity functions;  

 - Tree management advice shall be sought from a qualified arboricultural 
consultant; and  

 - Planting shall be maintained for the life of the facility and any plants which die 
or become diseased in this period shall be replaced in the following planting 
season.  
 

24. Prior to the importation of waste to the site, bird and bat boxes shall be installed 
in accordance with the details in the submitted Discharge of Conditions 
statement received on 8 March 2012 and Drawing No. GPP-GE-GBR-12-01 
Revision 1 dated 02.03.2012 and in accordance with the following requirements: 
 
- Bird and bat boxes shall be positioned by suitably qualified personnel and both 
number at least 20 suitably designed boxes;   

 - The boxes shall be appropriately maintained for the life of the facility and any 
lost or damaged shall be replaced no later than the following winter season.  
 
Reasons for conditions 23 and 24: To protect the interests of design, landscape 
character, biodiversity and local amenity having regard to Policy 20 and 21 of 
the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017). 
 
Surface Water 
 

25. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Waste Planning Authority, surface 
water controls shall be: 
 
- in accordance with the amended flood risk assessment (FRA) by Abington 
Consulting Engineers Ltd dated 6 January 2009; and  

 - designed to reduce the risk of flooding without affecting flood risk elsewhere; 
and   

 - be consistent with those advocated for sustainable urban drainage schemes; 
and  

 - be designed  and maintained for the lifetime of  the development.  
 
Reason: To ensure surface water runoff is successfully managed thereby 
ensuring flood risk to other persons or parties does not increase having regard 
to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 
2017). 
 
Groundwater and Contaminated Land 
 

26. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the Waste Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the 
developer has submitted, and obtained written approval from the Waste 
Planning Authority for the remediation strategy detailing how this unsuspected 
contamination shall be dealt with. 

Page 33



 
Reason: To protect controlled waters having regard to Policy 18 of the 
Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017). 
 
Groundwater Protection 
 

27. All wastes accepted onto site must be handled (stored, separated and treated) 
in an enclosed area and on an impermeable surface with a sealed drainage 
system. 
 

28. Any facilities, above ground, for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals shall be 
provided with adequate, durable secondary containment to prevent the escape 
of pollutants. The bunded area shall be designed, constructed and maintained 
in order that it can contain a capacity not less than 110% of the total volume of 
all tanks or drums contained therein. 
 

29. All filling points, vents, gauges and sight glasses should be bunded. Any tank 
overflow pipe outlets shall be directed into the bund. Associated pipework 
should be located above ground and protected from accidental damage. There 
shall be no gravity or automatic discharge arrangement for bund contents. 
Contaminated bund contents shall not be discharged to any watercourse, land 
or soakaway. 
 

Reason for conditions 27 to 29: To prevent pollution of the water environment 
having regard to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan (October 2017). 
 

Types of Waste 
 

30. Waste to be managed and imported to the site shall exclude untreated/unsorted 
Municipal Solid Waste (MSW), Construction, Demolition and Excavation Waste 
(CD&E), and green waste. These wastes shall only be imported to the site if 
sourced from and in accordance with, an indicative catchment area plan 
identifying a sub regional catchment for each type of waste which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Waste Planning Authority prior the 
importation to these wastes to the site. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development complies with the definition of a facility 
serving a Regional Catchment in accordance with Paragraph 5.102 of the 
Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017) and having regard to the 
requirements in Policy 12 of the Plan, in the interests of self sufficiency and 
sustainability. 
 
Fire Risk Management 
 

31. Prior to the importation of waste at the site, a fire risk management plan 
identifying the measures to mitigate and manage the risk of fire at the site shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Waste Planning Authority. The 
plan shall take be based on the guidance by the Environment Agency 'Fire 
Prevention Plans Version 1, March 2015' and the Waste Industry Safety and 
Health Forum (WISH) 'Reducing the Fire Risk at Waste Management Sites'. 
The plan as agreed in writing shall be implemented and maintained thereafter. 
 

Page 34



Reason: In the interests of safety and amenity protection having regard to Policy 
18 and 23 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 
2017).   

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



NN/21/00058/WASVOC and NN/21/00059/WASVOC - 
Storefield Plant, Gre on Brook Road, Earlstrees Industrial Estate, Corby, NN17 4BA

Title:
Date:

Scale:

Drawn:

30-03-2022

ST© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey licence no. 100063687

1:2,500

Site Plan

Legend

@A3

P
age 37

A
ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



                                    

 

 
 
 

North Northamptonshire Strategic Planning Committee  
11 April 2022 

 

 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Location Plan 
 
Scheme of Delegation 
 
This application is brought to the North Northamptonshire Council’s Strategic Planning 
Committee because it falls outside of the Council’s Officer Scheme of Delegation. The  
reason being that a material written objection has been received from a relevant parish 
council that is contrary to the officer recommendation. Additionally, there has been 
more than three written material objections which cannot be overcome by the 
imposition of conditions.   
 
1. Recommendation 

 
1.1. That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the conditions being varied 

as listed in Section 11 below. 
 
2. The Proposal 

 

Application 
Reference 
 

NN/21/00059/WASVOC 

Case Officer Helen Marsden 

Location 
 

Storefield Plant 
Gretton Brook Road 
Earlstrees Industrial Estate 
Corby 
Northamptonshire 
NN17 4BA 

Development 
 

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission ref. 
20/00023/WASVOC to increase the stack height from 
25m (currently permitted) to 35m 

Applicant 
 

ESF Energy Ltd 

Agent GP Planning Ltd 

Ward Corby Rural Ward 

Overall Expiry 
Date 

29 April 2022 

Page 39

Agenda Item 4.2



2.1 Permission for a waste use at the site was first granted in 2009. The Renewable 
Fuel Production and Recycling Facility has permission to process up to 154,000 
tonnes per annum of refuse derived fuel (RDF). Over time elements of the 
original permission have been varied including the building design, site layout, 
catchment area and annual throughput (see the table below in section 4 for the 
recent relevant planning history). The planning permissions for the facility were 
implemented in early 2014 by the digging of foundations and laying concrete 
and since that time the landowner has been endeavouring to secure an 
agreement with a company to invest in the plant and build and operate the 
facility.  
 

2.2 The landowner has now secured new interest from a potential investor and 
operator (the applicant) who, following a review of the permissions relating to 
the site, considers the consented stack height of 25m inadequate for the 
purposes of Environmental Permitting requirements for the following reasons: 
 

a) The maximum predicted Process Contribution (PC) has not been 
provided. The report only provides the peak off site concentration at 
the closest receptor whereas the Environmental Permitting 
Regulations require provision of the highest ground level 
concentration at ‘any’ location. The maximum off-site impact will be 
much higher due to the short stack and as such the applicant does 
not consider the stack height to be adequate. 

b) The Air Quality Assessment does not consider acidification or nutrient 
nitrogen deposition for habitat sites, which is a key requirement for 
the Environmental Permitting Regulations. 

 
2.3 Consequently, the applicant is proposing to increase the stack height to 35m, 

which includes a margin of flexibility, to ensure the plant achieves Best Available 
Techniques (BAT) and improved air dispersion necessary to secure an 
Environmental Permit required to operate the facility. The stack may be built 
lower than 35m if allowed by the Environmental Permit. No other changes are 
proposed. There are two planning permissions for the facility which has resulted 
in two planning applications on the agenda for determination, that have the 
same issues and considerations, but which have separate officer reports. 

 
3. Site Description 

 
3.1 The application site is located to the north of Gretton Brook Road, to the north 

of Corby on the periphery of Earlstrees Industrial Estate. Access to the site is 
from Gretton Brook Road, and improvements to the access to facilitate the 
waste development have been approved but not yet implemented. The site is 
part of the area formerly used by the ironstone industry for repair and 
maintenance of plant and equipment. It is now used for inert waste recycling 
with industrial uses in the existing buildings. The site is bound by dense 
woodland to the north, east and west in Brookfield Plantation (a County Wildlife 
Site), and a power station and industrial estate lies to the south beyond Gretton 
Brook Road. Gretton Brook runs along the southern boundary of the site. The 
nearest residential receptor is the travellers site approximately 800m to the east, 
and the village of Gretton lies over 2km to the north. 
 

3.2 Rockingham Castle scheduled monument is located approximately 2.6km to the 
west, and Kirby Hall scheduled monument is located approximately 2.8km to 

Page 40



the north east. A public footpath runs through Brookfield Plantation within 200m 
of the site. 
 

4. Relevant Planning History 

 
4.1 The following table lists all relevant previous planning applications: 

 

Application Ref. Description Approved/ 
Refused 

Date 
decision 
issued 

CO/05/0065 Change of use from scrap 
metal yard to use for 

sorting and crushing of 
inert waste materials to 

produce recycled 
aggregates and soils 

Approved 10/05/2005 

08/00097/WAS The establishment of a 
renewable fuel production 

and recycling facility 

Approved 21/04/2009 

09/00052/WAS Building extension and 
revised access to the 

renewable fuel production 
and recycling facility 

Approved 22/10/2009 

13/00060/WASNMA Non-material amendment 
to permission ref. 
09/00052/WAS for 

alterations to the building 
elevations and location of 
openings and revised site 

layout 

Approved 18/12/2013 

13/00061/WASNMA Non-material amendment 
to permission ref. 
08/00097/WAS for 

alterations to the building 
elevations and location of 
openings and revised site 

layout 

Approved 18/12/2013 

14/00093/WASVOC Variation of condition 20 of 
permission ref. 

08/00097/WAS for a 
revised catchment area 

Approved 24/03/2015 

14/00094/WASVOC Variation of condition 21 of 
permission ref. 

09/00052/WAS for a 
revised catchment area 

Approved 24/03/2015 

20/00022/WASVOC Variation of condition 2 and 
3 of permission ref. 

14/00093/WASVOC to 
amend building elevations 
and annual throughput of 

waste 

Approved 05/08/2020 

Page 41



20/00023/WASVOC Variation of conditions 2 
and 3 of permission ref. 
14/00094/WASVOC to 

amend building elevations 
and annual throughput of 

waste 

Approved 05/08/2020 

 
 
5. Consultation Responses 

 
Consultation on the planning application took place from 25/11/2021 to 
20/12/2021. Notification of the planning application was made to the relevant 
statutory consultees and also to the local ward councillors. The application was 
advertised by way of a site notice and advertisement in the Northampton 
Evening Telegraph on 25/11/2021. The following is a summary of the responses 
received during consultation on this application. Full copies of responses can 
be made available to the committee members on request.  
 
Representations from statutory consultees and local councillors 
 

5.1 NNC Environmental Protection The proposed thermal treatment plant will run 
under an environmental permit issued and regulated by the Environment 
Agency (EA). The EA have confirmed that have no objections to the increase in 
stack height, but the development will require a variation of the existing 
environmental permit. The NPPF is quite clear in this respect. Paragraph 188 
states ‘The focus of planning policies and decisions should be on whether the 
proposed development is an acceptable use of the land, rather than the control 
of processes or emissions (where these are the subject of separate pollution 
control regimes). Planning decisions should assume that these regimes will 
operate effectively’. In this case the site has extant planning permission for the 
activity as described and emissions will be controlled through the environmental 
permit. As such no comments or objections are raised as emissions will be 
controlled through the environmental permitting regime. 
 

5.2 Environment Agency 
No objections to the applications but bring to the applicant’s attention that the 
development will require a variation to the existing environmental permit under 
the Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016, 
Regulation 12. 
 

5.3 Highway Authority (NNC) 
No comments. 
 

5.4 Gretton Parish Council – Object to the applications 
The Parish Council objected to the original planning applications on many valid 
grounds, and the numerous representations/written objections from residents 
provided clear evidence of the overwhelming public opposition to the scheme. 
The Parish Council are disappointed that despite the significant concerns raised 
previously relating to the issues of landscape and impact of emissions, the 
promoters of these applications have brought forward proposals which the 
Parish Council considers will be further damaging without any attempt at 
mitigation. The Parish Council makes representations on the following: 
 

Page 42



 Effect on Landscape 
 
Increasing the height of the chimney stacks from 25m to 35m will make 
these even more prominent, being visible above mature trees, and will 
cause visual impact on the landscape. This will cause significant harm to 
the views particularly from the Welland Valley and other areas of 
treasured countryside which will transform the present rural area into an 
industrial landscape. 
 

 Impact of Emissions and Pollution 
 
The Parish Council originally expressed concern at the proximity of the 
site to the village of Gretton and other communities. The plant will affect 
air quality and likely to emit potentially harmful gases, dust particles and 
other undesirable materials. The site is located to the south-west of 
Gretton and the Parish Council object on the ground that all emissions 
and odours emanating from the plant will be carried on the prevailing 
wind to the village where there will be significant impact and nuisance. 
The Parish Council understand the raising of the height of the stack will 
create an impact over a wider area leading to harmful impacts on public 
health and also on wildlife habitats and biodiversity. 

 
5.5 Corby Town Council 

Corby Town Council are aware of local concerns regarding this site and are 
monitoring the applications. The Town Council wish to be involved in any 
ongoing consultations/meetings involving this development. 
 

5.6 Weldon Parish Council 
No comments received. 
 

5.7 Deene and Deenethorpe Parish Council 
No comments received. 
 

5.8 Councillor Kevin Watt (NNC Corby Rural) 
Councillor Kevin Watt objects to the applications for the following reasons: 
 

 Gretton Brook Road is not suitable for heavy goods vehicles due to its 
narrow nature and position of access. There has since been approval of 
a crematorium on Corby Road increasing the road usage considerably. 
 

 Gretton Brook Road is in poor repair due to the impact of heavy goods 
vehicles. This plant will only exacerbate the poor state of the road. 

 

 The original application was faulty if it needs amending. The applicant 
attempted minimum investment by proposing the shortest stack possible, 
and also demonstrated a lack of knowledge of Air Quality regulations in 
proposing a short stack. This indicates the applicant does not have the 
knowledge to safely run an incineration plant and that it will receive 
minimum investment. 

 

 The applicant states development commenced in early 2014 by the 
digging of foundations and laying concrete. 7 years later it is clear there 

Page 43



is no market for this incineration plant. The applicant cannot raise funds 
to construct the plant. Will they have sufficient funds to run the plant 
safely? 

 

 Burning leads to poor air quality. The plant will emit NOX, SOX, PMI 2.5 
CO2 and other gases which will reduce the air quality in the surrounding 
residential locations. Going forward North Northamptonshire will aim to 
improve its air quality and should this plant ever be constructed it would 
blight air quality in this area for at least the next 25 years. 

 
5.9 Councillor David Sims (NNC Corby Rural) 

Councillor David Sims objects to the applications for the following reasons: 
 

 Visual impact and pollution effects on Gretton and Kirby Hall is a concern. 
NPPF paragraph 199 is specific about considering the impact of 
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage 
asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation (and the 
more impact the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is 
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, 
total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance. 

 Increasing heavy goods vehicle movements to the suggested volumes 
on an already heavily used Gretton Brook Road calls into question the 
general traffic impact and sustainability. Bearing in mind other local 
planning approvals still to be developed, for example the crematorium on 
Corby Road, increase traffic movements and possible pedestrians. 

 
Representations arising from public advertisement 

 
5.10 A total of 6 representations have been received objecting to the applications. 

The following is a summary of the objections raised by representations received 
during consultation on this application. Full copies of responses can be made 
available to the committee members on request. 
 

 Object to a waste plant of this nature in this location. An incinerator is not 
an environmental-friendly way to deal with waste. The Council should be 
promoting reduce, reuse, recycle as per the waste management 
hierarchy model. 

 Major concerns regarding the impact on health and the environment from 
emissions from the plant over Gretton, Corby and other surrounding 
villages and towns in Northamptonshire, Rutland and Leicestershire 
arising from an increase in the stack height from 25m to 35m. The fact 
that the stack now needs to be higher to meet dispersion rates is of great 
concern to local residents. 

 Major concerns regarding the emissions from vehicles transporting the 
waste from many miles away to feed it. 

 The stack will be by far the highest and most prominent feature within the 
area and will be seen across the protected Welland Valley and from the 
Grade I listed Kirby Hall. 

 The applicant is again seeking to increase the scope and impact of the 
development, as they did with various changes in incineration method 
and with the extended 30-mile limit. Without all the changes the 
developer says the waste plant isn’t viable and they don’t have the 

Page 44



financial backing. If this is the case then the sustainability of both the 
original and new applications is reason enough to reject the applications. 

 Reiterate the Gretton Parish Council’s objections. 
 
6. Relevant Planning Policies and Considerations 

 
6.1 Statutory Duty 

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the Development Plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.   

 
6.2 National Policy 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) 
National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) (2014) 
 

6.3 The NPPW sets out the Government’s ambition to work towards a more 
sustainable and efficient approach to resource use and management. This 
includes the delivery of sustainable development and helping to secure the re-
use, recovery or disposal of waste in line with the principles of the waste 
hierarchy without endangering human health or harming the environment. The 
NPPW forms part of the overall national planning policy and is a material 
planning consideration in decisions on waste related planning applications. 
 

6.4 The NPPW states that Waste Planning Authorities (WPA) should only expect 
applicant to demonstrate a quantitative or market need for waste management 
facilities where they are not consistent with an up-to-date Local Plan. The WPA 
also requires the WPA to consider the environmental and amenity impacts and 
concern themselves with implementing the planning strategy in the Local Plan 
and not with control of processes which are a matter for the pollution control 
authorities. WPAs should work on the assumption that relevant pollution control 
regimes will be properly applied and enforced. 

 
6.5 Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (NMWLP) (2017) 

Policy 10 – Northamptonshire’s waste management capacity 
Policy 11 – Spatial strategy for waste management 
Policy 12 – Development criteria for waste management facilities (non-inert and 
hazardous) 
Policy 13 – Locations for waste management uses (WL16 Corby –Earlstrees) 
Policy 18 – Addressing the impact of proposed minerals and waste development 
Policy 19 – Encouraging sustainable transport 
Policy 21 – Landscape Character 
Policy 22 – Historic Environment 
Policy 23 – Layout and design quality 
 

6.6 North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (NNJCS) (2016) 
Policy 3 – Landscape character 
Policy 8 – Place shaping principles 

 
7. Evaluation 

 
The key issues for consideration are: 

 Principle of Development 

Page 45



 Landscape and Visual Impact 

 Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 

 Cultural Heritage 
 

7.1 Principle of Development 
 
7.1.1 The previous planning permissions starting in 2008 (and 2009 and current 

extant permissions (20/00022/WASVOC and 20/00023/WASVOC) establish the 
principle of an energy from waste facility at this site in planning land use terms. 
The permissions have been lawfully implemented in early 2014 by the digging 
of foundations and laying concrete. The site is within the central spine and 
complies with the spatial strategy for waste management (NMWLP Policy 11). 
Furthermore, the site is within one of the identified locations for waste 
management facilities (WL16 Corby – Earlstrees) listed in Policy 13 of the 
NMWLP. Therefore, notwithstanding that there are objections by the local 
community to these applications against the principle of the development, these 
cannot be given any weight in the determination of the applications. The 
applications are solely to vary the planning conditions relating to the plans and 
elevations submitted with the 2020 applications and no other aspects of the 
permitted development. There is no change to the permitted maximum 154,000 
tonnes per annum throughput and the related HGV traffic numbers. There are 
no grounds to reconsider the acceptability of the location for this development. 
Consideration of this application is restricted to the acceptability of the variation 
now proposed to increase the stack height from 25m (currently permitted) to 
35m.  

 
7.2 Landscape and Visual Impact 
 
7.2.1 Gretton Parish Council, Councillor David Sims and local residents have raised 

objections that the increase in height of the stack would cause landscape 
detriment. Policy 18 of the NMWLP seeks to ensure built development is of a 
design and layout that has regard to its visual appearance in the context of the 
defining characteristics of the local area. Policy 3 of the NNJCS requires 
development to conserve and where possible enhance the character and 
qualities of the local landscape. 
 

7.2.2 The site is bounded by Gretton Brook Road and Brookfield Plantation and 
situated adjacent to an area of Corby that is characterised by industrial 
development. The proposal to increase the stack height of an already approved 
facility by 10m (less if the environmental permit allows) to 35m should be 
considered in the context that there are already structures in the Corby industrial 
estates which are more prominent, particularly the Corby Power Station stack 
at 70m high (350 metres to the southwest) and the Rockingham Speedway 
stands (1.4km to the east) (although the stands have permission for demolition 
if the owner chooses to do this). There is also a large logistic building (300m x 
100 footprint -height not known) immediately south of the site at the other side 
of Gretton Road and beyond this to the west the larger part of the Earlstrees 
industrial area (site WL16 in the NMWLP) and to the south the Corby North 
Eastern industrial areas (site WL18 in the NMWLP). Permission also exists for 
an energy recovery facility on land off Shelton Road, Corby (1,25km to the south 
east within the North Eastern industrial area, which has permission for a stack 
at 85m high). The landscape and visual impact of the proposed 35m stack 
therefore has to be considered in the context of the current built and consented 

Page 46



industrial developments in this part of Corby. Whilst it is acknowledged that the 
proposed development will have some landscape and visual impact, this will be 
largely limited to the localised area of the site and on balance there is 
considered to be no justification to refuse the change to the stack height in 
respect of landscape and visual impact having regard to Policy 18 of the 
NMWLP and Policy 3 of the NNJCS. 

 
7.3 Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 
 
7.3.1 Policy 18 of the NMWLP requires that proposals for waste development should 

demonstrate that any impacts associated with it such as air emissions have 
been addressed to ensure that the environment and local amenity are protected. 
Amenity policy is reinforced through Policy 8 of the NNJCS which states that 
development should ‘ensure quality of life and safer and healthier communities 
by protecting amenity by not resulting in an unacceptable impact on the 
amenities of future occupiers, neighbouring properties or the wider area, by 
reason of noise, vibration, smell, light or other pollution, loss of light or 
overlooking’. It is necessary to consider therefore whether the proposals will be 
acceptable in terms of amenity impact having regard to the requirements of 
these policies. Gretton Parish Council, Councillor Kevin Watt, Councillor David 
Sims and local residents have raised objections that emissions from the plant 
would cause detrimental impact to health and the environment. 
 
Air Emissions 
 

7.3.2 The applicant explains the proposed increase in height of the stack is required 
because the stack height of 25m has been found to be inadequate for the 
purposes of environmental permitting (see paragraph 2.2 above). The applicant 
has therefore submitted a Stack Height Analysis to accompany the application 
to determine an appropriate stack height that is in line with Best Available 
Techniques (BAT) and the key requirements of the environmental permitting 
regulations. The emissions of NOx and ammonia (NH3) were used to assess the 
air quality impacts of the waste facility with varying stack heights. The analysis 
concludes that the stack height of 25m is acceptable for human health 
exposure, however taking into consideration sensitive local ecological receptors 
and the requirement to meet BAT for permitting, a stack height of 31m would be 
more appropriate. In order to allow a degree of flexibility following future 
dialogue with the EA, the applicant decided to apply to increase the stack height 
to 35m. 
 

7.3.3 To enable operation of the site, the EA have advised a variation to the existing 
environmental permit will be required. This will enable the EA to undertake a 
more technical assessment of the emissions generation of the plant and provide 
a mechanism for control to ensure acceptable levels are maintained and that 
the emissions from the plant comply with the required standards. Under the 
NPPW the WPA is required to assume that the relevant pollution control regime 
will be properly applied and enforced by the EA which has legal powers to fulfil 
this role. Ultimately, controlling emissions to air to an acceptable level in 
accordance with the specified technical standards is the responsibility of the 
Environment Agency. 
 

7.3.4 Gretton Parish Council, Councillor Kevin Watt, Councillor David Sims and local 
residents have objected on grounds of potential health and environmental 

Page 47



impacts from emissions. However, the EA has not objected to the air quality 
impacts of the development (and referred to the need for a variation to the 
existing environmental permit). Furthermore, the Environmental Health Officers 
at the Corby and Thrapston Environmental Protection Teams have not raised 
objections regarding air quality impacts. There are no outstanding matters 
relating to air quality and the proposal is considered acceptable in respect of 
minimising potential adverse impacts from air quality to an acceptable level in 
accordance with the requirements in Policy 18 of the NMWLP and Policy 8 of 
the NNJCS. 
 

7.4 Cultural Heritage 
 
7.4.1 Policy 18 of the NMWLP requires the impact on heritage assets to be assessed. 

MWWLP Policy 22 requires proposals for waste development as sites with 
heritage assets, to conserve and enhance the historic environment through 
careful management of their significance and settings, including avoiding or 
mitigating potentially adverse effects, and enhancement through restoration 
schemes. Policy 2 of the NNJCS seeks to protect heritage assets. Rockingham 
Castle (Grade I) and the associated Park and Garden (Grade II*) and scheduled 
monument are located approximately 2.6km to the west, and Kirby Hall (Grade 
I) and the associated Park and Garden (Grade II*) and scheduled monument 
are located approximately 2.8km to the north east. 
 

7.4.2 Councillor David Sims and local residents have raised concerns that increasing 
the height of the stack will have a negative impact on Kirby Hall. The two 
scheduled monuments in the vicinity are in excess of 2.5km distant from the 
site. The proposed stack will not be visible from any designated asset to the 
west, but glimpses of the stack may be possible from the east although it would 
be viewed in the context of the nearby industrial infrastructure including 
industrial buildings of greater height. Kirby Hall and gardens are set in the valley 
and the topography and intervening tree vegetation, and other built 
development (including Rockingham Speedway), along with the 2.8km 
distance, screen views from this heritage asset. As such there is considered to 
be no justification to refuse the change to the stack height in respect of impact 
on cultural heritage having regard to Policy 18 and 22 of the NMWLP and Policy 
2 of the NNJCS. 

 
8. Other Matters 

 
8.1 Traffic and Highways Safety: Councillor Kevin Watt and Councillor David Sims 

noted concerns regarding HGV’s exacerbating the poor state of repair of Gretton 
Brook Road. These are noted however no change to the permitted maximum 
annum throughput and related HGV traffic numbers is proposed and the 
Highway Authority has not objected to the development. The traffic movements 
are on the local highway network which serves Corby industrial estates. There 
is a planning condition which prevents HGV traffic from travelling through the 
village of Gretton. 
 

8.2 Viability of the Development: Councillor Kevin Watt and local residents raise 
concern that the various changes sought over recent years call into question the 
viability of the plant, and if/when operational would it be run safely. Having 
regard to the NPPW it is not necessary for the WPA to expect the applicant to 

Page 48



demonstrate a quantitative or market need for waste management facilities 
where they are consistent with an up-to-date Local Plan. 
 

8.3 Equality: The proposal would not give rise to any concerns with regard to 
equality. 

 
9. Conclusion / Planning Balance 

 
9.1 The principle of an energy from waste facility at this site is already established 

and the development has technically been implemented. The proposed variation 
to the existing permitted energy from waste facility is not considered to give rise 
to any significant detrimental impacts in terms of air quality, landscape and 
visual impact. Air quality will also be controlled by the Environment Agency as 
the pollution control authority under a variation to the existing Environmental 
Permit. It is therefore considered that the application should be approved and 
the condition varied as listed below. 

 
10. Recommendation 

 
10.1 That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the condition being varied as 

listed below.  
 
11. Conditions  

 
Commencement 
 

1. The development to which this permission relates has commenced.  
   

Reason: To clarify the status of the permitted development. 
 
Scope of Permission 
 

2. Except as otherwise required by conditions attached to this planning permission 
the development hereby permitted shall be implemented and maintained in 
accordance with the details, mitigation measures and recommendations in the 
following approved documents and plans submitted under planning permissions 
08/00097/WAS 09/00052/WAS, and 14/00093/WASVOC 14/00094/WASVOC 
and 20/00023/WASVOC and Non-Material Amendment 13/00061/WASNMA 
13/00060/WASNMA:  

   
 i. Submitted site plan, GPP/SE/GBR/08/04  
 ii. Ecological Constraints Appraisal by Lockhart Garratt dated 7.10.08  
 iii. Flood Risk Assessment by Abington Consulting Engineers dated 6 Jan 2009  
 iv. Comprehensive access & highway improvement plan 07046/260 dated 

February 2009  
 v. Proposed Site Layout Plan, drawing GL000015D4001 Revision PO3  
 vi Proposed Elevations, drawing 201 Revision D, Proposed GA Elevations 

154,000 Tonnes Per Year Throughput Proposed GA Elevations, 154,000 
Tonnes Per Year Throughput, Drawing 201 Revision E 

 vii Proposed Elevations, drawing 202 Revision B, Proposed GA Elevations 
154,000 Tonnes Per Year Throughput Proposed GA Elevations 154,000 
Tonnes Per Year Throughput, Drawing 202 Revision C 

Page 49



vii. Air Quality Assessment by Air Quality Consultants Ltd dated April 2020  
 

3. The development hereby permitted shall not exceed a total annual throughput 
of 154,000 tonnes per annum. 
 

4. The developer shall ensure that systems are in place to ensure that the site 
accepts and processes only waste of a non hazardous nature and that systems 
are in place to deal with any prohibited wastes delivered to site. 
 

5. The applicant shall notify the Waste Planning Authority (WPA) in writing of the 
date upon which the proposed facility receives its first commercial import of 
waste for processing. 
 

Reason for conditions 2 to 5: To specify the scope of the permission, the 
commencement date of waste import operations and in the interests of the 
environment, amenity and highway safety having regard to Policy 18 of the 
Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017). 
 

Construction Hours of Working 
 

6. All works relating to construction or demolition shall be carried out only between 
the hours of 7.00am and 7.00pm Mondays to Fridays, 7.00am and 1.00pm on 
Saturdays thereafter and at no time on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the construction on site is carried out within reasonable 
hours so as to avoid disturbance to land users nearby in the interests of amenity 
having regard to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan (October 2017). 
 
Documentation 
 

7. From the date of the commencement and throughout development, a copy of 
this permission including all documents hereby approved and any other 
documents subsequently approved in accordance with this permission, shall 
always be on display at the site office for inspection during normal working 
hours. 
 
Reason: To ensure this planning permission and associated documents are 
available on site for reference and inspection. 
 
Odour and Dust 
 

8. Odour and dust shall be controlled in accordance with the scheme of control 
measures identified in the submitted planning application (Air Quality 
Assessment by Smith Grant LLP reference R1847-R01-v2 dated August 2013) 
and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Waste Planning Authority shall 
respectively include: 
 
a) For odour: an Integrated Management System which will monitor the plant 

operation and maintenance; the reception and process buildings will be 
placed under negative pressure; automatic fast acting roller doors fitted at 
all vehicular entrances on the reception building; provision of localised 
extraction at potential point sources of odour generation, minimising storage 

Page 50



times for raw MSW (municipal solid waste); maintaining aerobic conditions 
within degradable organic material during treatment, treatment of all 
extracted air through suitably designed and well maintained biological 
filtration system. 
 

b) For dust during construction: use of clean water for  dust suppression, high 
standards of housekeeping, preventative maintenance programme, effective 
staff training, potentially dusty activities located away from the potentially 
more sensitive eastern boundary and dust suppression by regular spraying  
in dry conditions. 

 

c) For dust from operations: full enclosure of all stages of the proposed 
processes, regular sweeping of the access road as necessary to avoid 
accumulation of dust and debris. 

 
9. In the event that complaints regarding, odour and/or dust are received by the 

Waste Planning Authority from any sensitive receptor, and thereafter notified to 
the operator, an immediate assessment of the complaint shall be undertaken. 
A report on the findings, with proposals for removing, reducing or mitigating 
identified adverse effects resulting from the operation, and a programme for the 
implementation of remedial measures to be undertaken shall be submitted to 
the WPA no later than 5 working days from the receipt of the complaint, unless 
a longer timescale is otherwise agreed in writing by the Waste Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason for Conditions 8 and 9: To protect the interests of the area as a whole 
and in particular nearby residential occupiers in the interests of amenity having 
regard to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 
(October 2017). 
 
Noise 
 

10. Noise emanating from activities carried out upon the site shall not exceed 50 dB 
LAeq, 1 hour during the hours 07:00 - 21:30 or 42 dB LAeq, 5 minutes during 
the hours 21:30 - 07:00 at a free-field position at the boundary of any residential 
premises which have planning consent at the time this permission is granted. 
 

11. Manufacturer's guidelines relating to the servicing and maintenance of the 
silencers shall be followed and maintenance carried out at the appropriate 
intervals. 
 

12. In the event that complaints regarding noise are received by the Waste Planning 
Authority from any sensitive receptor, and thereafter notified to the operator, an 
immediate assessment of the complaint shall be undertaken. A report on the 
findings, with proposals for removing, reducing or mitigating identified adverse 
effects resulting from the operation, and a programme for the implementation of 
remedial measures to be undertaken shall be submitted to the Waste Planning 
Authority no later than 5 working days from the receipt of the complaint, unless 
a longer timescale is otherwise agreed in writing by the Waste Planning 
Authority. 
 

Reason for Conditions 10, 11 and 12: To protect the interests of the area as a 
whole and in particular nearby residential occupiers in the interests of amenity 

Page 51



having regard to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan (October 2017). 
 

Lighting 
 

13. Lighting external to the buildings shall be in accordance with the submitted 
lighting scheme submitted on the 8 March 2012 and incorporating the following 
documents: 
 
a) Application to discharge conditions dated 12 March 2012;   

 b) Lighting Floor Layout Plan , Drawing G007-01-03 dated 02.08.11;   
 c) Lighting Elevations Plan , Drawing G007-01-03 dated 09.08.11 ;  
 d) Lighting Site Layout Plan, Drawing G007-01-03 dated 09.08.11  
 e) Lighting shall be switched  off when not required;  

f) Minimise potential effects on bat flight paths through the use of low brightness 
lighting (such as low-pressure sodium) and restriction of lighting Brookfield 
Plantation; and 
 
The approved details shall be implemented and thereafter the development 
shall be operated and maintained in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the Waste Planning Authority retains control over these 
matters, in the interests of the visual amenity of the overall development, to 
prevent light pollution and to ensure that the development is adequately lit in the 
interests of amenity having regard to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire 
Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017). 
 
Highway Safety and Access 
 

14. a) The Heavy Goods Vehicle access to and from the site shall only be gained 
via the access point onto the Gretton Brook Road shown on Drawing No. ACE 
07046/260. 
 
b) Vehicle Routing - Prior to the bringing of the plant into operation a scheme to 
control the routing of HGV's shall be submitted and agreed in writing by the 
Waste Planning Authority, which shall include no lorries or other heavy 
commercial vehicles based at or visiting the site travelling along Corby Road 
(the minor road between the village of Gretton and Gretton Brook Road) unless 
collecting waste from this village. The approved scheme shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction and operational periods of the development. 
 

15. Waste importation operations shall not commence until the access has been 
improved in accordance with the following approved details and plans: 
 
a) Location Plan, Drawing No. 11005/101 Revision A dated 11/03/11;  

 b) Proposed Highway Works Layout Sheet 1 of 3, Drawing No. 1105/102 
Revision D dated 10.03.11;  

 c) Proposed Highway Works Layout Sheet 2 of 3, Drawing 11/005/105 Revision 
B dated 08/07/11;  

 d) Proposed Highway Works Layout Sheet 3 of 3, Drawing 11/005/105 Revision 
B dated 08/07/11;  

 e) Highway works Standard Details, Drawing No. 11005/104 dated 07/04/11;  
 f) HGV Swept Path Analysis, Drawing No. 11005/107 dated 08/07/11;  

Page 52



 g) Gretton Brook Diversion Temporary Works, Drawing No. 11005/108 Revision 
A dated 16/09/11;  

 h) Gabion Wall Proposals, Drawing No. 11005/109 dated 24/11/11;  
 i) Proposed Culvert Details, Drawing No. 11005/110 dated 24/11/11;   

j) Any gates shall be set back a minimum of 20m to the rear of the highway 
boundary (back of verge) and hung to open inwardly only. 
 
The hard surfacing shall be completed in accordance with the approved details 
in accordance with a timetable to be agreed in writing by the Waste Planning 
Authority. The development shall be constructed in strict accordance with the 
approved details and approved vision splays retained thereafter. The site 
entrance and the internal road shall be maintained in a condition free from 
potholes while in use. 
 
Reason for conditions 14 and 15: To safeguard the interests of highway safety 
and in the interests of amenity having regard to Policy 18 of the 
Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017). 
 
Wheel Cleaning and Vehicle Sheeting 
 

16. All operational vehicles leaving the site shall be cleansed of mud and other 
debris to ensure that there is no nuisance dust and no mud or debris is 
deposited on the public highway. 
 

17. The developer shall put in place a system to ensure that all operational vehicles 
arriving at and leaving the site are appropriately sealed or covered so as to 
prevent material spillage, wind blow and odour nuisance. 
 

Reason for Conditions 16 and 17: To ensure satisfactory means of access to 
the highway, safeguard the interest of users of the public highway and highway 
safety having regard to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste 
Local Plan (October 2017). 
 

Monitoring 
 

18. Heavy Goods Vehicle movements associated with the development hereby 
permitted shall be restricted to an annual average of 140 movements per day 
(i.e. the combination of HGV's entering and exiting the site averaging 70 in and 
70 out per day) and recorded details of the number of HGV vehicular 
movements, including the weight and category of waste delivered or collected, 
shall be provided to the Waste Planning Authority within seven days of a written 
request. 
 
Reason: To control any additional pressure on the existing highway 
infrastructure, in the interests of highway safety and convenience having regard 
to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 
2017). 
 

19. The operating company shall keep records of the quantity of waste received by 
weight, its source and Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) movements associated with 
the development and these records shall be provided to the Waste Planning 
Authority within seven days of a written request. All such information supplied 
will be treated on a confidential basis. 

Page 53



 
20. The operators of the site shall submit an annual report in writing to the Waste 

Planning Authority within one month of the end of the calendar year and at 12 
monthly intervals thereafter. The annual report shall incorporate the records 
required by conditions 18 and 19 above and demonstrate compliance with 
catchment area controls required in condition 21. This information shall also be 
provided within 4 weeks of a written request by the Waste Planning Authority. 
 

Reason for condition 19 and 20: To enable the Waste Planning Authority to 
monitor progress towards achieving the principles in Policy 10 of the 
Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017) and to 
ensure that waste materials are dealt with close to their source in accordance 
with Policy 19 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 
(October 2017). 
 

Catchment Area 
 

21. With the exception of a 15% calendar year allowance, and the exclusion of the 
types of waste in condition 30 all waste materials to be processed on the site 
shall originate from locations within the indicative catchment area as shown on 
No. 4 submitted Plans by Monksleigh referenced 'Task No. 016AZ 1-
4,'Estimated Drive Time Service Areas', attached to this planning permission, 
unless expressly approved in writing by the Waste Planning Authority on the 
basis that evidence is submitted which the Waste Planning Authority agrees 
demonstrates: 
 
- The waste is part of a temporary (two years or less) contract while processing 
facilities are constructed closer to the source; or  
- Other circumstances where there is a justified need to utilise the facility. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the materials are dealt with as close to their source as 
possible in the interests of self sufficiency and sustainability having regard to 
Policy 12 of the Minerals and Waste local Plan (October 2017). 
 
Visual Amenity and Design 
 

22. The new buildings shall be constructed to match the existing building on the site 
and the exterior shall be constructed of corrugated steel sheeting and finished 
in dark grey. 
 
Reason: To protect the interests of local visual amenity having regard to Policy 
18 and 23 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 
2017). 
 
Biodiversity and Landscaping 
 

23. The management and maintenance of the existing planting alongside Gretton 
Brook shall be in accordance with the details in the submitted Discharge of 
Conditions statement received on 8 March 2012 and undertaken on a 7 year 
cycle for the duration of the operational life of the development hereby permitted 
including: 
 
- Coppicing of shrub species to maintain visual screening of the development 

Page 54



from Gretton Brook Road;  
 - Management of damaged trees in the interests of both health and safety and 

biodiversity;  
 - Replacement planting (to exclude Common Ash) shall use species that are 

native, of local provenance and include a high diversity of species in order to 
provide varied food sources for native birds as well as visual screening and 
general biodiversity functions;  

 - Tree management advice shall be sought from a qualified arboricultural 
consultant; and  
- Planting shall be maintained for the life of the facility and any plants which die 
or become diseased in this period shall be replaced in the following planting 
season. 
 

24. Prior to the importation of waste to the site, bird and bat boxes shall be installed 
in accordance with the details in the submitted Discharge of Conditions 
statement received on 8 March 2012 and Drawing No. GPP-GE-GBR-12-01 
Revision 1 dated 02.03.2012 and in accordance with the following requirements: 
 
- Bird and bat boxes shall be positioned by suitably qualified personnel and both 
number at least 20 suitably designed boxes;   
- The boxes shall be appropriately maintained for the life of the facility and any 
lost or damaged shall be replaced no later than the following winter season. 
 
Reasons for conditions 23 and 24: To protect the interests of design, landscape 
character, biodiversity and local amenity having regard to Policy 20 and 21 of 
the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017). 
 
Surface Water 
 

25. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Waste Planning Authority, surface 
water controls shall be: 
 
- in accordance with the amended flood risk assessment (FRA) by Abington 
Consulting Engineers Ltd dated 6 January 2009; and  

 - designed to reduce the risk of flooding without affecting flood risk elsewhere; 
and   

 - be consistent with those advocated for sustainable urban drainage schemes; 
and  
- be designed and maintained for the lifetime of  the development. 
 
Reason: To ensure surface water runoff is successfully managed thereby 
ensuring flood risk to other persons or parties does not increase having regard 
to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 
2017). 
 
Groundwater and Contaminated Land 
 

26. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the Waste Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the 
developer has submitted, and obtained written approval from the Waste 
Planning Authority for the remediation strategy detailing how this unsuspected 
contamination shall be dealt with. 

Page 55



 
Reason: To protect controlled waters having regard to Policy 18 of the 
Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017). 
 
Groundwater Protection 
 

27. All wastes accepted onto site must be handled (stored, separated and treated) 
in an enclosed area and on an impermeable surface with a sealed drainage 
system. 
 

28. Any facilities, above ground, for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals shall be 
provided with adequate, durable secondary containment to prevent the escape 
of pollutants. The bunded area shall be designed, constructed and maintained 
in order that it can contain a capacity not less than 110% of the total volume of 
all tanks or drums contained therein. 
 

29. All filling points, vents, gauges and sight glasses should be bunded. Any tank 
overflow pipe outlets shall be directed into the bund. Associated pipework 
should be located above ground and protected from accidental damage. There 
shall be no gravity or automatic discharge arrangement for bund contents. 
Contaminated bund contents shall not be discharged to any watercourse, land 
or soakaway. 
 

Reason for conditions 27 to 29: To prevent pollution of the water environment 
having regard to Policy 18 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan (October 2017). 
 

Types of Waste 
 

30. Waste to be managed and imported to the site shall exclude untreated/unsorted 
Municipal Solid Waste (MSW), Construction, Demolition and Excavation Waste 
(CD&E), and green waste. These wastes shall only be imported to the site if 
sourced from and in accordance with, an indicative catchment area plan 
identifying a sub regional catchment for each type of waste which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Waste Planning Authority prior the 
importation to these wastes to the site. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development complies with the definition of a facility 
serving a Regional Catchment in accordance with Paragraph 5.102 of the 
Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 2017) and having regard to the 
requirements in Policy 12 of the Plan, in the interests of self sufficiency and 
sustainability. 
 
Fire Risk Management 
 

31. Prior to the importation of waste at the site, a fire risk management plan 
identifying the measures to mitigate and manage the risk of fire at the site shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Waste Planning Authority. The 
plan shall take be based on the guidance by the Environment Agency 'Fire 
Prevention Plans Version 1, March 2015' and the Waste Industry Safety and 
Health Forum (WISH) 'Reducing the Fire Risk at Waste Management Sites'. 
The plan as agreed in writing shall be implemented and maintained thereafter. 
 

Page 56



Reason: In the interests of safety and amenity protection having regard to Policy 
18 and 23 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (October 
2017). 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



NN/21/00058/WASVOC and NN/21/00059/WASVOC - 
Storefield Plant, Gre on Brook Road, Earlstrees Industrial Estate, Corby, NN17 4BA

Title:
Date:

Scale:

Drawn:

30-03-2022

ST© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey licence no. 100063687

1:2,500

Site Plan

Legend

@A3

P
age 59

A
ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting Held On 7th March 2022
	4.1 NN/21/00058/WASVOC
	Site Plan

	4.2 NN/21/00059/WASVOC
	Site Plan


